AGENDA

P.

1



II.

1L

VI.

VIIL

AGENDA

City of Franklin, Kentucky
City Commission

December 9, 2019
Regular Meeting — 12:00 Noon

City Hall Meeting Room
117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

Call to Order and Member Roll Call

Opening Prayer - John Whitaker, First Baptist Church

Approval of Minutes

o Approval of Minutes of November 25, 2019 Regular Meeting

Recognitions

City of Franklin Employee of the Year

Hear the Public

John Estes

Community Services

General Government

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Purchase of Public Works Service Truck
Presenter: Shaunna Cornwell, Finance Director

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Proposed Ordinance for First Amendment to
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Presenter: Shaunna Cornwell, Finance Director

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Small Business Development Center
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Appointments to Community Boards
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Contract for Level III Building Inspector
Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney

Discussion and/or possible action regarding Approval of Surplus Property Items
Presenter: Chris Klotter, Public Works Director

Public Services

Public Safety

Utilities

P. 2

Pg. 5

Pg. 13

Pg. 19

Pg. 22

Pg. 27

Pg. 31

Pg. 39



XI.

XI1.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVL

Ordinances

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-025 titled: Ar Ordinance Of The Board
Commissioners Of The City Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For
The Acquisition And Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment
Program (KRS 154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of
The One Percent (1%) City Occupational License Fee On Wages From Stark Truss Company, Inc.
That Would Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be
Collected And Remitted To The City To Be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term Of
Not Longer Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation Date Established By Said Program; And

Taking Other Related Action

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-026 titled: An Ordinance of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky Amending Sections 8.2.3, 8.15.3 and 8.16.2 and Adding Section 9.8 to the
Zoning Regulations

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-027 titled: An Ordinance Rezoning a 95
Feet by 500 Feet Lot Located on the South Side of East Cedar Street from R-1 (Single Family) to B-
2 (General Business)

¢ Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-028 titled: An Ordinance Rezoning
Approximately 40.1657 Acres at the End of Claiborne Circle Located at the End of Lexingion Place
Subdivision FromR-1 (Single Family) to R-1S (Single Family Residential District)

e Second Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-029 titled: A4n Ordinance Of The Board
Of Commissioners Of The City Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement
For The Acquisition And Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment
Program (KRS 154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of
The One Percent (1%) City Occupational License Fee On Wages From Gehret Gage, LLC, That
Would Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be Collected
And Remitted To The City To Be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term Of Not Longer
Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation Date Established By Said Program; And Taking Other

Related Action
e First Summary Reading of Ordinance No. 2019-030 titled: A4n Ordinance Amending the
Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020 by Estimating

Revenues and Appropriations
Presenter: Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

Executive Session

LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real property by a
public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a specific piece of property
to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency {KRS 61.810(1)(b)}

LITIGATION — Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}
BUSINESS — Discussions between a public agency a representative of a business entity
concerning a specific proposal, where open discussions would jeopardize the siting, retention,
expansion, or upgrading of the business {KRS 61.810(1)(g)}

City Attorney Reports

City Manager Reports

Other Commission Business

Adjournment

P. 3

Pg. 42

Pg. 49

Pg. 53

Pg. 61

Pg. 67

Pg.74



P.

4

MINUTES



MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN
CITY COMMISSION

November 25, 2019
City Hall

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin, Kentucky City Commission met in Regular Session at 12:00 Noon, Monday,
November 25,2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City
Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita Vaughn; City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell;
City Police Chief, Roger Solomon; Public Works Superintendent Chris Klotter; City Clerk,
Cathy Dillard; Franklin Favorite/ WFKN media representative, Keith Pyles; Trent Coffee;
Carter Munday; John Estes; and, Felicia Bland.

Mayor Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon, and Eric Walker of Franklin
Community Church offered the opening prayer.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
approve the minutes as presented of the October 28, 2019, regular meeting of the Franklin City
Commission.

Voting aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion was made by Commissioner Williams and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve the minutes as presented of the November 12, 2019, special called meeting of the
Franklin City Commission.

Voting aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.
1

P. 5



COMMUNITY SERVICE

Felicia Bland from the Kiwanis Club of Franklin-Simpson spoke about the upcoming
Christmas Parade. The parade will be held on Saturday, December 14,2019 at 1:00 PM. Bland
invited all elected officials to participate in the parade.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

On October 2, 2019, Commissioner Gray Tomblyn was in Franklin to announce that the City
of Franklin would be receiving additional funding for roads in the amount of $114,482.00 from
the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet Department of Highways. The streets identified for
improvement with these funds are: Colonial Drive, Filter Plant Road, Morris Street and
Village Drive.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve the Agreement between the City of Franklin and the Transportation Cabinet for
additional road funds in the amount of $114,482 and to adopt Resolution No. H-2019, and
further authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement, resolution and any other necessary
documents relating to the additional road funds.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION NO. H-2019
CITY OF FRANKLIN

This is a resolution adopting and approving the execution in duplicate of an Agreement between Commonwealth of
Kentucky, Transportation Cabinet, Department of Highways and the City of Franklin, Kentucky in the amount of §114,482.00
for the resurfacing of various streets in the City of Franklin.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin does hereby ratify
and adopt all statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained in said Agreement and does
hereby accept the funds provided in said Agreement, and by such acceptance agrees to all the terms and conditions therein
stated; and :

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to sign said Agreement as set forth
on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin, and the Franklin City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed
to certify thereto. :

Dated this 25" day of November, 2019.

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to ratify the Mayor’s signature on a letter
of support for BRADD’s application for the multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
update. This update will allow the City to apply for Federal hazard mitigation grant funding if
a hazardous event occurs.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Williams to ratify
the Mayor’s signature on a letter of support to the BRADD for their application for a multi-

jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan update.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

2

P. 6



City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission to approve an amendment to
the Lease Agreement with Regions Bank for their lease of the property located at 117 West
Cedar Street owned by the City of Franklin. Cornwell indicated that all terms and conditions
had been reviewed and approved by the City Manager and City Attorney.

Motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
approve the execution of the First Amendment to Lease Agreement with Regions Bank and

authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary to effectuate this lease.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission to approve the payment of
$180,664.32 to Toyne for the City’s commitment to pay one-half of the cost of a new fire truck.
This payment was required prior to the approval of the first amendment to the FY 2020 budget
for the transfer of funds.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the payment of $180,664.32 to Toyne for the City of Franklin’s one-half commitment
of the cost of a new fire truck and to include this capital expenditure in the first amendment to
the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission for sponsors of an Ordinance authorizing
the participation in the Kentucky Business Incentive Program (KBI) for Stark Truss Company,
Inc. and an Ordinance authorizing the participation in the Kentucky Business Investment
Program (KBI) for Gehret Gage, LLC.

Commissioner Powell and Commissioner Williams asked to sponsor Ordinance No. 2019-025
(Stark Truss Company) and Ordinance No. 2019-029 (Gehret Gage, LLC) with first reading
taking place during the ordinance portion of the meeting.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to authorize the Mayor to sign the
notification letter to the Kentucky Cabinet for Economic Development stating that the City had
fully contributed their portion in the Kentucky Business Investment (KBI) program with regard
to Fritz-Winter North America LP.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the Mayor to sign the notification letter to the Kentucky Cabinet for Economic
Development stating that the City had fully contributed their portion in the Kentucky Business
Investment (KBI) program with regard to Fritz-Winter North America LP.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

3

P. 7



City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission for sponsors of an Ordinance to adopt
amendments to the Planning and Zoning Regulations. These amendments were approved by
the Planning & Zoning Commission after a public hearing pursuant to the statute.

Commissioner Bennett and Commissioner Powell asked to sponsor Ordinance No. 2019-026
with first reading taking place during the ordinance portion of the meeting.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission for sponsors of two proposed ordinances
to approve rezoning a parcel on East Cedar Street from R-1 (Single Family) to B-2 (General
Business) and another in Lexington Place Subdivision from R-1 (Single Family) to R-1S
(Single Family Residential District.)

Commissioner Stewart and Commissioner Powell asked to sponsor Ordinance No. 2019-027
and Ordinance No. 2019-028 with first reading taking place during the ordinance portion of
the meeting.

PUBLIC SAFETY

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to review and approve the School
Resource Officer Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Franklin, County of
Simpson and the Simpson County Board of Education.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve the School Resource Officer Memorandum of Understanding between the City of
Franklin, County of Simpson and the Simpson County Board of Education and authorize the
Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary to effectuate the contract.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Police Chief Roger Solomon asked the Commission to declare as surplus and approve for sale
the following property: 2012 Dodge Charger VIN 2C3CDXAT8CH239979 and 2012 Dodge
Charger VIN 2C3CDXAT5CH221133.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Williams to
declare the two vehicles above-referenced as surplus, to authorize the sale of the property, and
to further authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary for the transfer of the

property.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Police Chief Roger Solomon asked the Commission to approve the purchase of a 2020 Dodge
Durango for the Franklin Police Department. Chief Solomon indicated this purchase is a
replacement for a cruiser which was involved in an accident and deemed a total loss.

4

P. 8



Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
purchase a 2020 Dodge Durango from Hunt Ford Chrysler in the amount of $28,162.00 and to
approve the uplift equipment and labor expense of $3,828.54 to L& W Emergency Equipment
and to further authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary for these purchases.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.
UTILITIES

Public Works Director Chris Klotter asked the Commission to authorize the acceptance of
Williamsburg Park Subdivision to include water, sewer and storm water utilities and the streets.
The streets include the following: Eastborough Court, Westborough Court, Easthampton
Court, Westhampton Court, Exeter Court and the new portion of Williamsburg Road.
Acceptance of this subdivision would include a one year warranty on the utilities and
streets from the Developer beginning November 25, 2019. Klotter noted that there were a
few items to be addressed by the developer during this one year warranty period.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the acceptance of Williamsburg Park Subdivision to include water, sewer and storm
water utilities and the following streets: Eastborough Court, Westborough Court, Easthampton
Court, Westhampton Court, Exeter Court and the new portion of Williamsburg Road, with a
one (1) year warranty on utilities and streets from the Developer beginning November 25,
2019; and, to further authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary for this
acceptance.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works Director Chris Klotter asked the Commission to authorize the acceptance of
Windsor Park Subdivision-Phase I to include water, sewer and storm water utilities and the
streets. The streets include the following: Victoria Way, St. George Way, Crimson Way,
Windsor Park Street. Acceptance of this subdivision would include a one year warranty on
the utilities and streets from the Developer beginning November 25, 2019. Klotter noted
that there were a few aesthetic items to be addressed by the developer during this one year
warranty period.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
authorize the acceptance of Windsor Park Subdivision-Phase I to include water, sewer and
storm water utilities and the following streets: Victoria Way, St. George Way, Crimson Way,
Windsor Park Street and Windsor Park Street, with a one (1) year warranty on utilities and
streets from the Developer beginning November 25, 2019; and, to further authorize the Mayor
to sign any and all documents necessary for this acceptance.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 9



ORDINANCES

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided first summary reading of the following ordinances:

Ordinance No. 2019-025 titled: Ar Ordinance Of The Board Of Commissioners Of The City
Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For The Acquisition And
Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS
154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of The One
Percent (1%) City Occupational License Fee On Wages From Stark Truss Company, Inc. That
Would Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be
Collected And Remitted To The City To Be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term
Of Not Longer Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation Date Established By Said Program;
And Taking Other Related Action

Ordinance No. 2019-026 titled: An Ordinance of the City of Franklin, Kentucky Amending
Sections 8.2.3, 8.15.3 and 8.16.2 and Adding Section 9.8 to the Zoning Regulations

Ordinance No. 2019-027 titled: An Ordinance Re3zoning a 95 Feet by 500 Feet Lot Located
on the South Side of East Cedar Street from R-1 (Single Family) to B-2 (General Business)

Ordinance No. 2019-028 titled: An Ordinance Rezoning Approximately 40.1657 Acres at the
End of Claiborne Circle Located at the End of Lexington Place Subdivision From R-1 (Single
Family) to R-1S (Single Family Residential District)

Ordinance No. 2019-029 titled: An Ordinance Of The Board Of Commissioners Of The City
Of Franklin, Kentucky, Authorizing The Grant Of An Inducement For The Acquisition And
Construction Of A Project Pursuant To The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KRS
154.32-010 To 154.32-100) Whereby The City Agrees To Forego The Collection Of The One
Percent (1%) City Occupational License Fee On Wages From Gehret Gage, LLC, That Would
Otherwise Be Due With Respect To Project Employees, Which Amounts Shall Be Collected
And Remitted To The City To Be Refunded Upon Employer’s Request Over A Term Of Not
Longer Than Ten (10) Years From The Activation Date Established By Said Program, And
Taking Other Related Action

No action was taken on first reading of these ordinances.

Mayor Dixon asked each Commissioner if they had any additional comments.

Commissioner Bennett noted the continued growth of Franklin as was evidenced by the KBI
incentive ordinances and the new development zone changes and acceptance of streets.

Commissioner Stewart thanked the Franklin Police Department, Greenlawn/Shady Rest
Cemetery Sexton and City Public Works Department for their assistance this past Saturday for

the funeral procession and interment of Mrs. John J. Johnson.

All the Commissioners wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.
6

P. 10



ADJOURNMENT

At 12:38 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to adjourn the regular meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P. 11



GENERAL
GOVERNMENT

P.12



MENO

T Wi Ty Tixon and Commissicncrs
KRN shavrwa K. Corrswell, TEreclr ol Finaree
TATE: Trecember B 2014

SUBILCT: Discussion Regarding Awand of Badst 202002 for Purchuse o Porchase of 2020 Ford

F-250: e Cah; 434: Thesel

The City puhlished an nvitatian te Bid & 2020-402 i the Purchase of @ 2020 Ford F2500 Crew
Laaby 4Xd: [hesel.

Tl bad oponing was Inesday, Novemnber 26th, Theres wes one szaled bid submided. Additonmly,
there 1= o Slalke Bid prce with Paul Miller Food in Tesinglon, BY throvzh the Stae of Ky

Procurement processes, The results of the bids ace az Tollwes:

Huer Ford F4d a4, 00
Paul Miller Ford 48 D8RO0

P o Che bud rasilis, Trocommend that we award the porchase of thass ceuizers w Lant Fard.

Proposed Botion: 1'd 1ike wo recenmmoencd thal The Cite award the Muchase of 2020 Cord F-230 to
Tl L Terd s smachories the Mavers 1o slae ooy and al” docomentation related te this sarvice.

P. 13



HUNT

1952

%huntau’tﬂ-‘;d&

Vehicle Bid For
City of Franklin

Bid#2020-02

Preparad By:

Office; 270 H86-3201

Call: 270 f0-BT07

Faw 2/0-0860-B813
Frnadl: jimmy@hnnlautocom

Jimmy Falls
Flest Manager - Hunt Ford, Ing
26 Garvin Lane, Tranklin K 47734
i b s s a0

F. 14



Heginn Eamd ﬁlilﬁft'ﬂ' Dokzr L2501
t "Tredfilom Brikbs Horo™ _
e Sacaeran Intv Fells

TEATT D2040T 17 =01 = wx Pk e Fantlin
225 Gardn Lorc

FraMELTH, v 43134

EALGYS- TR

Faw 270-5545-531F

pny el o9

darrr Fadle i

LU At g
Lath i &7 Leiead FHOSENCY SEATN Fo o e & S H| |

Inzpee |
i .
1
f
- | ! . : -
| : i f
E ]
| I
| ' |
J 1
I [}
I I
i i
H 1
|
- - 1 - - - - - - - = - - . - - . - - -
TAN, TETL&, AMIFLIT, ¢ | |
-— — - =3 ——— — ——
. S LR |

Tarad | st
TerA L Ll L

Unmeaden precarss ko Iy fals
Him=a
[ BT i
Fenb sl sl

THIS IS AM ESTIMATE ONLY,. PRICES TOULD WAy DE=MDINGE £, REZATES AT Th: TIM.. OF
LELTV SHY.

ol BCLHTUS RGBT TRk H Ll B EUR R TET I T LR R U g ] ool 2
iy s TRea oF o se e ok, W e ok b In:dud=~ =5 ipk i aptet -1

(BRI [ TH ETER H N



BID FORM #2020-02

TO:  City of Franklin
c/o Finance Director’s Office
P.O. Box 2805
Franklin, KY 42135

FROM: Mi}dc, Phone: & Zc/v}’{%(g 28l
LAS (oeeroin L e Fax: 2o~386 -~ 8813
_Freakin Ky CEUX  Email_jinmmy @ heafact om

The undersigned herby certifies that to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, the cost or pricing data
submitted herein is accurate, complete, and current as of the date set forth here on.

The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she has carefully examined the plans and/or specifications. The
undersigned is familiar with the type of service/equipment/supplies to be furnished as set forth for a
complete installation/supply.

The undersigned proposes to furnish the supplies and/or equipment which will perform in a satisfactory
manner and that is in accordance with the plans and specifications set forth, for the following price.

The Bidder certifies, by signature, that all specifications have been reviewed and that any variations to
the City’s specifications, including both exceptions to or enhancements of same, are clearly stated in an-
attachment to this bid.

The Bidder, certifies, by signature, that all addendums issued to this bid offering, if any, have been
reviewed and the Bidder is fully aware of the implications of the addendums on the bid offering, and that
a copy of each issued addendum is signed and included as confirmation of receipt. it is the responsibility
of the bidder to check the website, www.franklinky.org, for any addendums that may have been issued
before final bid is submitted.

The Bidder, certifies by signature, that the Responsibility of Bidders Form has been fully completed and
attached as part of the bid.

Are there any exceptions to the specific specifications set forth on bid? Yes_&¢~ e No_

if yes, please explain. /l/m(/, ,/c (oQa\ STH /?/7 F(C bﬁb‘__ ) Z)[e ﬁgjaf /52/{

'faﬁ(,l- N Sale. Yook haee” fo a LS C(&% J'/)‘J'L
Company or Individual Name /‘/LL:{Z)Z fémﬂ. Iﬂﬁc

Doing Business As {DBA)

Street Address (22915’ Garvia Lane P.O. Box 37(
City, State, Zip Code _ Aran k. bia Ky {2134 pe. by zip Y35

Official Name (printed) Q}WI”? f /:Q/(;v‘

Official Signature 2t % Date //’QLY“’ /7

P.16



RESPONSIBILITY OF BIDDER FORM

This form must be completed in full and submitted with bid. Misrepresentation or failure to
complete will automatically disqualify bid. All information is confidential and exempt from
Open Records Law, pursuant to KRS 45A.395.

NAME /4/(4./) £ /q;/‘cp Jac Phone # 224 S Be-3R8 1
ADDRESS (225 (marvin Lesc Ere bl /(y L2224
Street or PO Box City State Zip Code

1. Type of services/supplies provided in normal course of business: yek?g(g Cesle 2(2_’5: Zq,é@.b Part> & <
2. Length of time in business: G 7 LS Seryie
3. Experience in providing bid- requ1red services/supplies: Agrs [lec f MNercge
4. Currently a party/defendant in lawsuit(s)? ( ) Yes (/) No

If yes, explain:
5. State past his;!o/r}as party/defendant in lawsuit(s).

6. Name of contract/product liability insurance carrier: _an-k» o8 Tnsurcacs
Limits: $ igocb, Cco
7. If construction bid:
(a) How many other projects currently ongoing?
(b) How many bids currently submitted elsewhere?
(c) Have books been audited by CPA? ( )Yes ( )No
Date of last audit
8. City of Franklin Business License No. 5o
9. List of references (public or private) and contact person for whom similar services/supplies
provided.

Frepbtin Elodrn Plodt Lant 307 0 Yishst  Oepe Ceolrn 2P0 -SBE ~LH€

Name of Firm Address Contact Person Phone #
wREeC G 51 Livicw Ave (sery i%/%fm; 290 -84 (p 5 |

Name of Firm Address Confact Person Phone #

(/ t’%?l

0

Name of F|rm Address ' Contact Person Phone #

Note: if more space is needed, please attach separate sheet(s).

/o N - oy
, _ gj’;muy Y @/fén,v, , do solemnly swear that to the best of my knowledge
and belief the above is true and accurate statement of facts.
Signed ; Date //’023/’ (7
State o
County of \6/4«,,75/‘7'\
Sworn to and subscribed bef me, a Notary Public, thise2J _day of U@z , 29‘1'81
My Commission expires /[ < A5 -

Notary Public

P. 17



ATTACHMENT A

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The bidder, by its officers and authorized agents or representatives present at the time of filing
this proposal, being duly sworn on their oaths, say that neither they nor any of them have in any
way, directly or indirectly, entered into any arrangement or agreement with any other bidder or
with any public officer of such City of Franklin, Kentucky, whereby such affidavit or affiant or
either of them has paid or is to pay to such other bidder or public officer any sum of money, or
has given or is to give to such other bidder or public office anything of value whatsoever, or such
affidavit or affiant or either of them has not directly or indirectly entered into any arrangement
or agreement with any other bidder or bidders, which tends to or does lessen or destroy free
competition in the letting of the contract sought for by the attached proposal, that no
inducement of any form or character other than that which appears on the face of the proposal
will be suggested, offered, paid or delivered to any person whomsoever to influence the
acceptance of the proposal or awarding of the contract, nor has this bidder any agreement or
understanding of any kind whatsoever, with any person whomsoever to pay, deliver to, or share
with any other person in any way or manner, any of the proceeds of the contract sought by this
proposal.

COMPANY: /7/ wnt  ferd  Lnc

BY: Q;W;)@@/
7

(signature)
NAME: Sitmmy  [Falls
" (type or print)

TITLE: f'/ lect MNane e

DATE: //’07—5’/?

P.18



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Shaunna R. Cornwell, Director of Finance
DATE: December 9, 2019

SUBJECT: FY2020 Revised Budget Amendment #1

I would like to address the Commission regarding the proposed revisions to the FY2020 Operating
Budget.

I will discuss all significant changes to the budget and answer any questions regarding any amended
amounts. This is a mid-year operating review as well as a capital project carryover. I met with the

City Manager to discuss, review, and obtain his approval of all budgeted changes.

If approved as represented — the Budget Amendment Ordinance is prepared for first reading and we
will need two sponsors for the ordinance.

P.19



ORDINANCE 2018-030

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2019 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2020 BY
ESTIMATING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, the City Commission for the City of Franklin, Kentucky is required by law to amend its budget ordinance to reflect actual revenues and
expenditures if different from those projected; and

WHEREAS, it has been reported to the City Commission that actual revenues collected and costs expended by the city during the 2019-2020
fiscal year are different from those projected in the current budget ordinance, and it is therefore necessary to amend the 2019-2020 budget ordinance fo
reflect these variances,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Franklin, Kentucky that the 2018-2019 budget is hereby amended to read as follows:

General Stormwater Sanitation Municipal Cemetery Perpetual
Fund Fund Utility Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund Care
Estimated Revenues:
Operating Revenue - 247,500 5,292,000 722,000 - 77,000 7,400
Tax Revenue 1,163,989 - - - - - -
—4;067,396
Licenses & Fees 5,437,511 - - 244,000 - - -
Intergovernmental Revenue 419,062 - - - 457,849 - -
—418,062 —338367 —— —_—
Fines & Forfeits 68,602 - 208,750 26,000 - - -
R7'nnn .—_2.08_159’ —26—@99‘
Intragovernmental Revenues 592,998 100,000 - - - 186,000 -
Miscellaneous Revenue 274,413 16,904 189,273 9,630 1,686 1,722 11,823
— 239608 — 15402 — 221723 #6060 2409 607 —12,647
Non-Operating Revenue - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 7,956,574 364,404 5,690,023 1,001,630 459,535 264,722 19,223

—7:842.253 —362,802 5,722,473 -—-9989;500 340,467 —263,607 —20,047
Appropriations:

General Government 1,491,035 - - - - - -
—+H467483
Police 2,358,631 - - - - - -
—2:366:719
Fire 279,553 - - - - - -
— 279,553
Public Services 808,852 - - - - - -
——805.888
Community Services 630,004 - - - - - -
814424
Economic Development 739,000 - - - - - -
. 738000
Stormwater - 213,825 - - - - -
— 213,804
Municipal Utilities - - 3,507,065 - - - -
—3;540,156
Sanitation - - - 725,000 - - -
—725.000
Municipal Aid/Severance - - - - 364,250 - -
245250 -
Municipal Cemetery - - - - - 204,499 -
—204.524 ————
Debt Service 535,260 - 602,194 - - - -
— 544040 ——— — 606,956
Capital Outlay 1,139,491 - 1,037,771 - - 5,000 -
— 574585 ——— - — 664,017 5.000

Page 1 of 2, Amended ORDINANCE 2019-030

P. 20



TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

EXCESS RESOURCES

RESERVE FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
TRANSFERS OUT

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Supplementary Notes:

Expenditure of Funds from Capital Sinking
Fund (Monies allocated and saved in prior
Fiscal Years):

Once time Allocation for Purchase of
Property

One time Allocation for Defeasance of
Bonds

Change in Fund Balance Net of One Time
Expenditures and/or Expenditures from
Capital Sinking Fund

SECTION 2: The regulatory license fee shall be eight percent (8%) of gross sales of all alcoholic beverages sold by
the drink. In the case of retail sales of package distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages, the regulatory license fee

7,981,826 213,825 5,147,030 725,000 364,250 209,499 -
(25,251) 150,579 542,993 276,630 95,285 55223 19,223
98,335 - 332,797 - . . -

— 105008 — . 3372764
438,000 - 243,498 209,500 95000 52,400 3,000
— 433,000 243,498 — 208,500 — 95,000 — 52,400 —3.000

(561,586) 150,579 (33,302) 67,130 285 2,823 16,223
487,597 - 342,909.18 - - - -
260,000 - . - - - -
255,000 - 265,000.00 - - . -
441,012 150,579 574,608 67,130 285 2,823 16,223

shall be five percent (5%) of gross sales. The annual rate for the regulatory license fee adopted by the City
Commission is estimated to ensure full reimbursement to the city for the cost of any additional policing, regulatory,
or administrative expense related to the sale of alcoholic beverages in the city.

SECTION 3: The detailed budget proposal and message, together with modifications, are hereby adopted and
incorporated by the reference herein, the same as if copied at length herein.

SECTION 4: This ordinance is effective upon its passage and publication.

SECTION 5: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or a portion of this ordinance is

declared illegal, unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Franklin City Commission held on on motion made by
, the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion,

seconded by Commissioner
by the following vote.

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

Commissioner Brownie Bennett
Commissioner Herbert Williams
Commissioner Jamie Powell
Commissioner Wendell Stewart
Mayor Larry Dixon

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

A DETAILED COPY OF THE BUDGET MAY BE SEEN AT CITY HALL,117 W CEDAR
STREET, FRANKLIN KENTUCKY BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 8:30 A.M. AND 4:30 P.M.

MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY.

Page 2 of 2, Amended ORDINANCE 2019-030

P. 21

and



e 1,‘ L
S FHANKLIN -

MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: December 4™ 2019

SUBJECT: Small Business Development Center

Judge Executive, Mason Barnes, reached out last month to inform me that the Small Business
Development Center at the WKU Research and Development Center, is in need of additional
funding. The Center is located on Nashville Road in Bowling Green Kentucky, at the old Mall
location.

WKU has been covering the total cost for the past ten years but to budget cuts, has left a short
fall for Simpson County for the amount of $5,189. Mason Barnes recommends the deficit to be
covered by dividing it four ways among the County, City, Industrial Authority and Chamber of
Commerce. The amount for each would be $1,297.25.

During Monday’s Commission Meeting I like to discuss this item and if the Commission is
open to fund its recommended amount.

On the following pages is an email from the Judge Executive and information concerning the
Small Business Development Center.

Thank You,
Kenton Powell

P. 22



Kenton Powell

e A e T —— T e
Froim: EAanin Baries < mibharnesi@simpsonoou nty. s s

Sent: Fenclay, Movenrhar 4, 20000 3:271 P4

To: Kenten Fowell, Deranis Griffir: Steve Thoemor d

Subjact: s gl buziress developmeni conler

Attachments: Szl 3usivess Developrmen D Ce ool

tenteman,

| b atlache:d somea nformatian concarning the Small Busines: Covelupmcnl Center that | obtzined at last
wazk's BRADD meeting. The Counly Judzes fn the SLATDE met hrizfy orior to the regular mesting o discuss this issue,
The attachment givesa briet ovardew of the Cenlor and ils current slalus. [Lalso shaws 2 breakedown ot cost per counly
it wi teel it is worihwhile for cur communtty ta participate. Ohvioushy, | have no history with the Conter, but Tdo helisve
stronzly that the success ot small businesses con equate b success for a community. Fwimnid ba my hope that woenight
cphil Lo cost fourwayswhich wotld be just under 51,300.00 cach. Feel ree e contact me, or ifwe need ta atl zet
togethes to discuss in persan tkat would e gonsd too,

Tharik Yo,

Mascon Barnas

Simpsan Coundy JudysEgeculive
PO Box 242

Franiice KY 42135

EFILLAE T84 [ofitoa)
270.595.8974 (=)

Wi, sl mpsoncoaunty.us

P. 23



Cnur Small Business Development Center (SBDC) has been located at the WEL R&LD Center on
Nashville Road south of Bowling Green for over ten vears. Tt serves the ten BRADD counties,
The previous director was Miller Slaughter who retived last month. The SBDC is a partuership
with the Federal Small Business Admindstration {SBA), the University of Kentucky and WKLU.
WEU has withdrawn their funding due to budget shortfalls, Llowever, WEU has agreed to
comtinue providing office space.

'I'he SBDC aids small and starlap businesses to prow and prosper by providing free services
including financial advice, counscling, research, and spocialized software for developing
bankable business plans, The SBDC also serves as a gateway to SBA guaranieed loans
delivered by a local bank, Small business is critical to a healthy economy, especially in a small,
raral county. The assistance provided by the SBDC can mean the diflerence between success
and bankropicy.

1t 1akes approximately $300,000 to fond aregional office. There were twelve regional uflices in
Kentucky administered by the stute oflice housed at UK. The Murray office has been
consolidated with Owensboro and ours is temporarily closed, The federal SBA typically funds
50%, of each office nationwide with regional Universitics lunding the other 50%. With WKILI's
withdrawal we are 25% short (5235,109) that must be made up at the county level. SBA will
fimd 50%, and UK 25% leaving 25% for us, The following schedule breaks down our
contributions by population showing each county's share. This is tremendaus leverage, giving
cach of us access to a $300,001) office with local visits lor Less than $8,000 annually in most
cases. The office will have one full time director and two part lime emplovees. The state
director is housed at UK bul reports to the SBA as well. We will have a local advisory
copmmittoe that meets at least quarterly, giving each county direct input and accountability.

Tohnny Hobdy and I hope you will pariicipate in this very impottant effort to save qur area
SBDC. We will he preparcd Lo send invoices to cach county in a fow days.

The funding breakdown [ollows:

County Populatdon Parcentage 1
Alles 19956 7.022% |% 5976
Barren 42,173 14.839% |5 L2GE30
Butlar 14600 4 465% 5 3800
Edwwanscn 12,161 4.279% b 3,642
Hart 18,199 B404% |5 5450
Logan 26,835  9.442% 5 O
| Metcalfe 10,093 3554% |§ 3024
Monroe 1m9e3d 3J.ESE%m |5 3,283
Simpson 17,327 6007 [ 3 5,185
Warren 113792  40.090% |3 MO
Total 284195 1000000 |5 85,109

P. 24



A e b Moreacky Srnal Buglrass Devangriem Cner

Sond Measzags

Find An Ofice Near You

 SREChSC | _ . _ . — a
15 Small Business  Funded in part through a coaperative agreement with the LLE, Small
S B A Administtion Busingss Adminisiration. All opinions, conclusions ar

racommendations sxpressed are those of lie atithor(s] and do nol
nocessarnily reflect the visws of SBA. Reasonchls accommodations
for peracns with disahililies will he made if reguasted al least T
waeks in advance. Contact your local service center o make
accommaodations.

'.___-d-'—_--—_‘

Locations Programs Mews & AMERICA'S

" Resources
Azhland Affordeble Cors fiot :

Eoading Srean L Bicy "KENTUCKY

= SBA Webinar

Stzte Oifice
Elfzshzthtnem A — Fress Aalewss Siart Your
Highland Heighls Eeiioas
Lexinoion Tralndng Calendar
Loissuilie B Cliznt oy Y aLly
piiddleshons Dowriasds Hisliiess
- W R cp, e Four
il i Resourcss SUSeTs
Prestonshirg + Coplracitr s Hpd Bragil
Souih Central Trsining Busingss About s
» Minoiity sed AESISIoRC Servines
Wornion-Opned * Linxs Dur Pariners
Businesses v Laiomie Gatgel Us

P. 25



Farras :IJ'.!I'IIII'.-\."'d
fire First Lvdited Methodli
xested on the side of the

insida wiewe of tre Likie
hoot Frarddin Firsl Loniae
3 0f holds focd, [oibetring

: peaple wonld trel safe uing to,”
abeers said “Ther wanded L our of
it ey ol 1k
ay ther caun cormng diiogg the day
1bs e R T EUNE 0 nedivg anr‘
g0 At niehi il L= thene” R Y
The wourly worksd no i i
s Havery ovep o conrze of ger-
al woeles on Wedneadas: al the
arch.

“hiey got 1 poing snd [ roally
o o he " Caheore aid,

'mride the Little Panlry are
wned pouds with flie wh for
= apening, looth beuslies, tanth
wieE, habi foud, dispec:, gruea-
bars, fruil cuee, sncls, Yienns

t: talked

e poditm oW -'_:-:J.'.:ug i

vauin teaffic wnd iz |

witdl rrojerts (hoy wrecs
[rom the

Tadd ey dagidions: can ke

alar
Tt i e chieeh, which wA0
lie Lep w700y Lhed= bveeajucy ur put
Illl:L'LIJ rin thea Lilite Fandiy *-_-.:b_ AR
ﬂ"'-.:-u_x i flcd aboon dunating
l'l]-uul-.x‘h and jackets, th el thear
e Aarking oo b tn fUlAD that
rrafesl with such smai sgace.

I anyhonly wants 1-n L any-
rluu:_ thewr ace wersome " Calw *l’r
sidid. ~I et weil] be turaal i

Lhe plan iz Lo nave (o bos stay
apr werr aronnd and shouge ihe
s o derendine on e seasn
] mooda of the poople.

"aatting the word au
errhe arogdy, pronple weie

A sroject ey
[ e 2urmmi
way Lo opea
LTV L Tl R
deols talkeod
EXpErIcs A
3o Tadll 11 waa
i
anhai gl e
e MAST prs-
i tive Toad
L5l progeam
Ierenl Lhings
ale learming,
ilalsle o e,
ave ant lieeg)
H Tl 1 B R TR
e, L ks prod-
b inest B
= Tl oo
JHaroarrr sakl,
lrom raci;
I’ spoke oon

rabietics ahib, the photng
capley chibom 1Lc: bsingss
izl Lechnalgey chab,

I ke @ Bl fo by shis
Toenms up aod speak din
fromn o0 he Lioard an we
whntel o povie g meny
stdenls as possille with
that spvorbraity sod Lher
bnaeTaed 1 ot of hie perk,”
Crroaner said, “Yon mealee
i prosd wlgped.”

Unce fha coaddie schon
fingzlied the'y presents
Sinns e l:ll.'bﬁr'-:_] went nn
i TR nex! it oo Llaeir
iprenda. v III i I |1'|H.:'||||_.
o Lounty Zchuls Hoaid
o f qu-.a'rln i HUTLDOT,
crmineried cn e snow
daays Tast wecl saving pow-
pie wers aralctl on b
the zmoem Aoy was Dardlad

TR

YUY Giessed they didn'
hiavt: t0 gl 10 at the Tas
susiirde,” TTile suid,

vohlnazer waid he il
e b 1ot porenls Enow as
LU0t A% Eosuible =o they
S BTt mskiey aTEDEA-
Vs A ol

O the cousint arends
Mt wora several Jund-
raisiy lorme sulbmiiled
br the Frankliv Flenen-
Ly srlusol wnd the aeifalic
::-:.JJL- A for dillerom Fess,
iThls cnngrataleted e
Attdgncd o e crealivity
A femsion of e ploas,

Rl gl tmnehed my
boert that iliy sro gnime
culsics of 1he nerm i)
helping the saolor citizens
TR T n.||=:'-- » homies ne
s bk £ ha'r T il wudd

P. 26

- l

TR AR,

a——

N R T,

Zald wminimLig-

1-.:;_-1 navigenl. Sgme 5@.‘5 IW ke 1 i Lo
Fois e ul shillnecdadgn Lov e '||_||_|I|
Cnart's cole Berovree O10-
Tund thy Ger o Mesio-

o agres W ihi
Iovam guavanice,
il the remim
i aine eounties oo L
BRATID agree, was [our
o one with magiztrace
Mlyrom ‘Uhaviar caziéng
i Lome mo wote,

The court aprecd
unanimowsly to provids
lunding Ffor uperation
ol the Smali Business
evelurment Cepler in
Hovis dFreon, il (e
Tomai ning: counties o
the: HEARNT alan agree m
i i,

Simpron County's
portivn of filnding for
the centor, hased on
popanlilion, is 25,184,
Barnes proposad splil-
Ling the coat evenly
botwreen ihic county,
Cily of Franllin, Franle-
lig-Simpaan [udustrizl
ﬂulln.m_rit_-,' and F& Chem-
Tigr ol Commeree, Hach
.?I_P'I:'I.H_..?- wonld provide
Aonee ok, 0T

A docement iy bueing
pirepsaced for all foure Locud
agemeies Lo approve 30
Lthey agres iu participans
i L= hameding, -

The Small Business
Develooment Cenler
has bovn localed al

the Woslorn Kentucky
Linipessiiy ey Cenlve
e Mashvelle Boad in
dowling Groon aml is
4 martuersiop with the
15:doral

Sleall Buriness

faility.

Westyen Kentucky -

randuem  aj

aderseand
tge Luelwean e connny,
Cily and Simpzen Coon,
tv School Syetem was
apmrgped,

Frinklin Tolice
provides the achuol
resoures glliver for b
schonl svstem.

The anl¥ changs o
he moemarandam nf
Uuderstunding je the
aclinel systom s ue lon-
Far reguired tn orovide
a Tulesurapher program
frr reording fseal court
and Frooklin Oty Com-
izslen mectings, The
enunly gnd oMY o
rrovicde poersonnel [
recaliog: the: ieeting s,

Me courl appirove] o
contract fur an iascrg-
wr for eeching Secowd
Chance Oflvender Relp-
bilitation aod Ldnecation
(SU0RE) clasere ar (1
sirnpson County fail o o
Menrly cost W e jail ol
S T,

Alan Jr};.-rm*r.rl Wiy
i comtract heldbeon the
COUTE, ity and an inde
prndont eoniractor for
luspectinng of commer-
clal and indusidal boild-
s in the suunty and
il

And, the courn
approsved e counm's
Dol 31 Ffinancial stare-
sk, subject Lo andic

ﬂlfdlul_i_lév SErvices

||_|.J,|-'|-
. |J.|:~-."'"'-'
..,,ll'lé

o

SrLs

B-owling

HEARING A [Dl

" Drive a little, save a lotl
Teffrey A

Dactnr 5f Audial ogy

270-

782-5000

G rean

wwrw. franklinfavorite.com

BLOT ST iy e



MEMORANIL M

Ty Mlayor Larrys Dixon and £ ommizsiones
FROM: Fenwom Povaad 1, Catw Mansger
SLUBIECL:  Appointment of Board Mernbe s

TIATT: Theeembar 4, 2009

Alizvched wath ths meme 15 a list of all appoilntments @ Boards made by the Cile, Highlighied
e e tegrrther kams sxpinny on December 31, 2019,

F-& P'arks Board

Taza Bashant wag appadoted Lo Janoaey to L Llerberl Willtam< unespiral T yesr appaintment
wher he Lok over al the volmg City reproscntative of the Pack Doarl. Terry Ticer imlicales
Uit Lisa da aractive ancd involves] Towrd member and be reeommends she be ce-appuinted ln a
foawr woar term w expive 12312020,

F-5 Planning & Lowing Cormmissien

Corag My lor weas appeinied w fill Carer 2dnnday’s wees pived ern when he ook he pesiiion os
Achnindatrator of Planming & Zoming, Crang weould liks fo cantione wo caree an this Board and i
is recommendsd be be re-sppointed Tora e vexs erm Lo expie on 127372023,

Creorre Wetssinger s regular four vear foom on this Board i3 also expiving wnd 1015 recommennld
he be re-appoinled Tor o lovr veae Lerm o esmive on 31N A

F-5 Planning & FYoning Hoard of Adjustments
Lran Coates cegular fowr year berm s eapiring aml Thn seqoested oot te be reappointad as b is
laaking forveard to retircmeir,

Thiter Bowen bas expressed o desice e serve o s Thesrd amad 31 = mesemmendad he be
wpeinled e s Tour wear foom to expies en T35 172023

P. 27



F-S Code Enforcement Board

John Craddock has served this Board since its inception and has requested not to be reappointed
at this time. Jill Broderson currently serves as an alternate member of this Board. It is
recommended that Jill Broderson be reappointed to this Board as a regular member for a four
year term to expire on 12/31/2023.

Ronnie Clark has expressed a desire to serve on this Board and it is recommended he be
appointed as the City’s alternate member of the Board for a four year term to expire on
12/31/2023.

Housing Authority of Franklin
Mary Cummings’ term on this Board is also expiring and it is recommended she be reappointed
for a four year term to expire on 12/31/2023.

Proposed Motion: Recommend motion to approve the appointments or re-appointments of
the following Board members:

Parks Board — Lisa Bashant — Four year term to expire 12/31/2023

Planning & Zoning — Craig Mylor and George Weissinger — Four year term to expire on
12/31/2023

P&Z Board of Adjustments — Hunter Bowen — Four year term to expire on 12/31/2023

F-S Code Enforcement Board — Jill Broderson — Four year term to expire on 12/31/2023
and Ronnie Clark — Four year term to expire on 12/31/2023

P. 28



BOARD APPOINTMENTS

MAYOH PHO-TEM APPOINTIMERT

Ginrarnissirer Warsde] Soevarl

ERADDCOUNCIE CH AGING
[Appointed by clected official, rop muost be 80 yrs o older, siemee Lo gear Lermin)
Fark 1 ramesmin

EOYS & GIRLS CLAUEF F-5
[non woting Gity rep normal tenn: e of alectad of Fee)
Harkes wiihars, kar-Yating Sty Bop

ELECTHIC PLANT GOARD
[arrnal Cenm - 4 yaars ¢ lmelt 2 consecifivie larms |
Jarniz Povaell, Walirg Cioy Rap
Firad famgory
Dttt Thaoras Speinzar
ayre Fovall F anesgined b af Lesosr Koy
r:arl Starar

FE AMBLILANLE BDARD
Meaerizal beon-2 vedrs Limil o copsesimia lanmns|
Jennlle; el

F & iUMAR EIGHTS CORMISSION
tionmal tenn-uinlimited — 13 il msnhars, T appolited by Sty

CITY APPOINTEES
Wanea Tk
Cuugtas He: car

Fastar Donzeln Les

SullE Fade b wisds
Jenee Hakde
Exivie i iiar

Caunlice Mokases

F.2 INDUETRIAL AUTHIORITY EOARD
Hdating mambars gach - narmal k-4 geans)
Wisnual! Sheasl - Weling Cily Bep
weayne ondum
Crarla Knigm
Arriann Powel
Cram 3&r Nigslor ran-eakng)

Laks Wasar (e woting

E-5 FARKES BOERL)
[0 Enkal enailices 5 teomt CHy, 3 ear Coannky] with nermal ferm-1 yanrs)

Harsat W&lams - “ebng by Hiea
liza =Hashars (i uncspuned rarm af Herba Suilkars]
Jeiloe Huzon
Tir Cownam
I%z:hrs HAnE

{8 total mambers - 4 appolvhnants each Ay county & city Mormal Tram 2 paars)
Cabiala Trarnton
T Mior (o Bl Cader Mureday's woiespied e
Conene Wrissingar
Foty Tules o il Bt Jones uraxgirss iom:

F&PLANMING & ZONNG ) Z0MIMG SOARD OF ADJUSTMEMTS
(5 MEMULERE TOTAL. 2 City appoimbed, 3 saunty appointed 4 yesr termes;
IS SImAaRen
Daniel Coales

P. 29

rm Explres
120312020

JEIMEDET

1E/ 3020

It e R b
L Dy

E N
0N g |
132020

1AETA0

[EDSS o
TrEGRE1Ea
ERr D s
TR
Mo Cxpinaton
M Cxgzitabon

LECEY e
123152013
(FDR D
WAL
“RiE1AEE)

LS Dty |
R L |
T2 =09
itz

Term Crpires

120 a0z |
123143019



F-5 CdiUe ENFORCEREMNT BLARD
[3 MEMJERS TOTAL, 2 Cily willi 1 Alternate; 1 County willi 1 Adternata)
Lity Appaintmenls
Jalm L Cragdack
Fopgy Cuosay
Jill Bracarazn (AHzrraie)
County Apprinbnents
Jzbi Bosar [ krrmeis)
E=lty Fatar

F-5 RENAISSANCE
Lo witing City rege nonfal taim: e ot ofiice)
Ciocmiaigais nzr Foreamoe Beronsk Koe Yieting Sk Hop

IHSTORIC FRESERVATION COMMITTEE
S Bz
Loa Bass Lirsddrdie
—anry Coeon
A Elle
Craldia Laknssn
T Weody
Tarmiz Garmy (e Glizo Mamigad

HOUSIHG ALUTHOH Y of FRANFELIM
(5 membars = Hormal b, 4 ynars)
_arry [iaey - vialirg Gy Rap
Ky Curznninge
1747 | maraeTIan
Fail Lozshat
Lary Sk

PAA_Brard of Asscssmenl Appeals
inarmal {enn-3 yeara - 1 mambar appointed by each Ty, Fiscal Court & Juga) [ments once o g

caniiol peTYe cansarutive Lannst
Elal kgl

VIEST FORH UHAKES CRCCE DAM & RESERVCIR INTERSTATE ALTHORITY
Corauiad by KRS T8 6 OOk af Traniln Beceme marbe
Member Tarmns Inoetinite
gy | arny Dlixsn (Resclulion T1-2008]
vty Sorrrizsiuner Herbart vilisris dRue, D207
EoE Irdusrhiz Saticiiy Rep Wlayre Gacdoam
Srnpsun Colly Wesser | isirss Rep Slephar 5eoose
Sipscn Copaly cisral Dot Bea Judes Exes Basen Do e, 1201

GOODHISHT LIBRASY
ben Cary Appailiri=nds

011 B UVISORY OCARED
[8n appointricenls, mambsrsbip by positizn |
Ceenmraner of geluco Slale Meien Fas 5
Slrapsan Gk Judye Caecaliva
iy o Franklin ayor
Crankin Po s Cakaf
=renklin-Sivpsen Cive Feacya Grir
Frarkin-simipson =S Do r
Simgeen Ceanky Shenf

SIMPFSON CO. S0 SORNSERVATION
M Cily Agpairtnants

SIMPFSRN . TSRS
M Zily Appcdirimants

SIMPETN T, WATER DISTRICT
Hu Zily Appointirants

P. 20

S AE
T2E10Z2E
PTAEIAE

120152012
LA

1203102021

ALK
AEIENE

B I H D) |
AENEE
4502020
& D W e

kA

2E15EE
RSl R N
2
214202
20377

G200

(BRI NPy
1ZNE0MN
122021
ERtR TR R |

(RELR Rl n o)



MEMO

TO: Franklin City Commission

FROM: Scott Crabtree

DATE: November 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Contract with Level III Building Inspector

Attached is a contract for a Level III Building Inspector which is consistent with the action taken at the
joint City-County meeting that was conducted a couple of months ago. If it meets the Commission’s
approval, we will need to adopt the motion below.

Proposed action: Motion to approve the Professional Services Contract with a Level III Building
Inspector and authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary to effectuate the
contract when contract is finalized and approved by the City Attorney and City Manager.

P. 31



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR LEVEL III BUILDING INSPECTOR IN AN EXPANDED JURISDICTION
PURSUANT TO 815 KAR 7:110

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on this _ day of December, 2019, by and
befween Donnie Thompson, 1100 Needmore Clifty Creek Road, Bowling Green, Kentucky
42101, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor,” and the City of Franklin, Kentucky, a Kentucky
Home Rule City, and the County of Simpson, Kentucky, a political subdivision, both validly
existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, hereinafter jointly referred to as “F-
S.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, F-S requires the services of a Level I1I Building Inspector in accordance with
815 KAR 7:110 to administer the provisions of the respective ordinances of the City of Franklin,
Simpson County, and the Commonwealth of Kentucky, pursuant to 815 KAR 7:110, and all other
applicable laws, rules, and regulations governing the building plan and specification review and
inspection of commercial and industrial buildings in Franklin and Simpson County, Kentucky;

WHEREAS, Contractor is a qualified, certified Commonwealth of Kentucky Level III
Building Inspector who is properly licensed, and is willing and able to perform such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties contained
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. SERVICES PERFORMED. Contractor will perform the services of a Level III

Building Inspector and shall be responsible for reviewing plans and specifications for commercial
and industrial buildings and shall serve as the supervisor over or be the licensed inspector in charge

of, commercial and industrial building inspections. Contractor shall perform the services required

P. 32



by or be the licensed Level III Building Inspector responsible for all services and inspections as
required by all relevant F-S ordinances, 815 KAR 7:110, and all other applicable laws, rules and
regulations related to commercial and industrial building plan and specification review and
inspection services.

a. Commercial & industrial building plan and specification review and
inspection oversight and/or approval services shall be available to the City of Franklin and
Simpson County, Kentucky at the direction of the Planning and Zoning Administrator, on a per
call and/or appointment schedule basis at all hours that F-S offices are generally open to the public.
Contractor shall provide F-S with information necessary to allow for immediate contact with
Contractor when services are required.

b. Plan and specification review services shall include, but may not be limited to,
examination of submitted plans and specifications as applicable to current Kentucky building
codes (or other applicable laws, rules, and regulations), retaining all pertinent records and copies
of permits and correspondence related to each submission or permit in a manner consistent with a
professional plan and specification review, provide and/or file a copy of all permits and records in
the Franklin-Simpson Planning and Zoning office, and code review of commercial and industrial
building plans and specifications for sites and buildings prior to construction. In addition,
Contractor shall provide licensing oversight, review, and/or approval authority over commercial
and industrial building inspections in the City of Franklin and Simpson County, Kentucky.

c. Contractor will provide letters and/or reports as requested or required by F-
S, including fully detailed written reports documenting all reviews/work performed by Contractor.

d. Records of all reviews shall be maintained and retained as required by law.

Contractor shall maintain a complete record of all reviews as required by 815 KAR chapter 2

P. 33



through chapter 35 or other applicable laws, rules, and/or regulations, and submit reports as
required. Contractor understands that copies of all reviews, permits and inspections records and
reports shall be maintained at the Planning and Zoning Office in Franklin, Kentucky.

2. Independent Contractor.  Contractor’s services shall be performed as an

independent contractor. Nothing contained in this agreement or in the scope of Contractor’s
services shall be construed to create an employer/employee relationship between F-S and
Contractor. Further, Contractor understands and agrees that Contractor is or may not be the
exclusive provider of these services for F-S.

a. Contractor will not receive benefits generally available to F-S employees
nor any rights afforded to F-S employees pursuant to any employee handbook or personnel
policies. Contractor is not entitled to any benefits related to unemployment compensation or public
employee retirement as a result of this agreement.

b. Contractor will provide at his/her sole expense all tools, equipment, office
space and transportation necessary to perform the services required pursuant to this agreement and
all relevant F-S ordinances and 815 KAR 7:110 Section 2 and/or other applicable laws, rules, and
regulations.

C. Contractor may perform inspection services for other entities and engage in
other business activities so long as other work does not conflict with performance of services
required pursuant to this agreement.

d. Contractor shall, at his’her sole expense, provide any workers’
compensation insurance coverage to the extent required by law.

e. Permits and Compensation: Contractor will bill F-S for services in

accordance with the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by reference.

P. 34



Contractor will invoice F-S, by and through the Planning and Zoning Administrator, on a monthly
basis and Simpson County, Kentucky will pay Contractor’s invoices within 10 business days of
receipt of said invoice or as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. F-S shall be responsible for
collecting fees directly from the applicant for the project plans to be reviewed.

3. Indemnification. Contractor will indemnify and hold F-S, its officers, agents and

employees harmless against and from any and all claims or damages, including reasonable attorney
fees, by or on behalf of any person or persons from personal injuries, wrongful death, loss of use
and property damage arising out of his/her performance under the terms of this agreement and the
duties prescribed herein. F-S, on its behalf, may assert any governmental immunities or tort
liability caps that may exist. Provided, however, that Contractor’s indemnity is limited to the
maximum amount of insurance coverage available on or to Contractor for the performance of his
duties hereunder.

4. Insurance. Contractor will maintain at his/her sole expense liability insurance
covering the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions occurring during the performance of
Contractor’s duties pursuant to this agreement.

a. F-S shall be named as an additional insured and a certificate of insurance
shall be provided to F-S on an annual basis. Contractor’s insurance shall contain a clause that it
cannot be canceled without 30 days’ written notice to F-S prior to cancellation.

b. Contractor’s insurance shall be in the amount of $1,000,000 each negligent
act, error or omission and $1,000,000 aggregate or higher amount as may be required by law or

required as a professional Level 111 inspector.

P. 35



C. Contractor shall maintain at all times motor vehicle liability insurance as
required by law and any other professional liability insurance as may be required for continuing
licensure that may be required of Contractor’s trade.

d. At any time during the term of this agreement, F-S may require Contractor
to provide proof of insurance in a form satisfactory to F-S. If in F-8’s opinion the required
insurance is not being maintained, F-S may immediately terminate this agreement by written notice
without liability whatsoever to Contractor.

5. Breach by Contractor. Upon the failure of Contractor to satisfactorily perform the

services contemplated pursuant to the terms of this agreement, F-S may immediately terminate
this agreement by written notice to Contractor.

6. Term. This agreement shall be in effect from the date approval for the expanded
jurisdiction as obtained from the Commonwealth of Kentucky and shall continue thereafter unless
terminated by either party as set forth herein.

a. This agreement may be terminated by Contractor at any time for any reason,
or for no reason, on 60 days written notice.
b. This agreement may be terminated by F-S at any time for any reason, or for

no reason, on 30 days written notice.

7. Notices. Any notices required by this agreement shall be sent as follows:

TO F-S: TO CONTRACTOR:

c¢/o Planning and Zoning Administrator Donnie Thompson

101 Courthouse Square 1100 Needmore Clifty Creek Road
Franklin, Kentucky 42134 Bowling Green, KY 42101

8. Effect. If any provision of this agreement shall be declared invalid or

unenforceable, the remainder hereof shall continue in full force and effect.

P. 36



9. No Assignment. This agreement and the duties and rights secured hereby shall not

be assigned or transferred to any other person, entity, or party for any reason by Contractor. The
death, incapacitation or termination of Contractor shall act as an automatic termination of this
agreement without liability whatsoever to F-S.

10.  Data Practices Requests. Contractor shall comply, to the extent required, with the

Kentucky Open Records Act. Contractor will immediately notify the Planning and Zoning
Administrator if Contractor receives a request for information. F-S will cooperate with the

Contractor in determining an appropriate response to the request for information.

11.  Entire Agreement. This agreement contains the entire understanding and contract
of the parties. No modification, either oral or written, may be made without the formal approval
of the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin and Simpson County Fiscal Court.

12.  Code of Conduct. Contractor shall at all times while performing duties under this

agreement maintain a professional appearance and demeanor and shall treat all members of the
public with due respect. Contractor shall not take any action, nor communicate with others in a
manner that will project a negative image of F-S or its employees.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed below as their free, voluntary

and knowing act on the date written above.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY SIMPSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY
Larry Dixon, Mayor Mason Barnes, County Judge Executive
Attested by: Attested by:
Cathy Dillard, City Clerk Pam Rohrs, County Clerk

6

P. 37



CONTRACTOR: Witness:

Donnie Thompson Print Name:

P. 38




ML W)

T Mavor Lavey Dixon aod Cornmm issionens
FROM; Clivis Klotrer, Paklic Works Director
LB Dieecmober 5. 20HT

SUBIECL: W Mudison Sireel Properiy Sarplos Tesms

Ag part of the clesnup process Lor the W Madisen progenty, 31 has heen deterinined that three
ilarns an the property necd to be put on the surplus list for remeval. Upon approval these fams
will B lisles] o GiorePenls with 1l deseriptions and photos. Uhe itzms ase listed below.

Loymitberad Thaler
Hopper Bin

Piryer

Ulotos of the above Semes ars ineloded an e corom Gsston packe,

Feoposed Mokion:
Recommend motion to declarve the cardboard baler. hopper bin, sl deyer as sorplos

properly, bo approve the sale of the property and to authorize the ¥ayor sign all
necessary docoments foe (he sale of these items a8 surplus.

P. 39



SUTRFPLUS PROPERTY I'I'E Y15

T Clmies
Tisx Yerlical 60 Baler

7.5 HIY Maovor

Thern T
[unper Bin Doy Stovpe
Cialvanized and Corrugaismd Hlesl

il Dicpros Bodjom Cone

Tiein ' hiree

Wioad Drvcr Dlecd Tor Pallels
._.EL-:L'-'-.'].".'ﬂ*EET_ il voar Medal =012
Meabaelurer — Kilo-Lhwrect.cam

30 Vil — Malwal (as

P. 40



ORDINANCES

P. 41



Sponsors:  Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Williams

Second Reading: _November 25, 2019

Publication Date: _December 12, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-025

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN
INDUCEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE KENTUCKY BUSINESS INVESTMENT
PROGRAM (KRS 154.32-010 TO 154.32-100) WHEREBY THE CITY AGREES
TO FOREGO THE COLLECTION OF THE ONE PERCENT (1%) CITY
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE FEE ON WAGES FROM STARK TRUSS
COMPANY, INC. THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DUE WITH RESPECT TO
PROJECT EMPLOYEES, WHICH AMOUNTS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND
REMITTED TO THE CITY TO BE REFUNDED UPON EMPLOYER’S
REQUEST OVER A TERM OF NOT LONGER THAN TEN (10) YEARS FROM
THE ACTIVATION DATE ESTABLISHED BY SAID PROGRAM; AND
TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTION

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (“City
Commission” and “City”) to encourage, promote, and support economic development, new job formation, and the
development and growth of industry and commerce, and to preserve existing jobs in Kentucky for the public purposes of
providing employment opportunities for its citizens and residents, alleviating conditions of unemployment, stabilizing and
promoting the economy of Kentucky, and creating new tax bases and sources of revenue for the Commonwealth;

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Business Investment Program, Sections 154.32-010 through 154.32-100 of the Kentucky
Revised Statutes (“KRS”), the (“Program™), authorizes and empowers the Commonwealth and certain local jurisdictions to
promote economic development in Kentucky by inducing the creation of economic development projects by eligible
companies, as more particularly described therein;

WHEREAS, KRS 154.32-090 authorizes an eligible company to deduct certain wage assessments from payments
of wages to economic development project employees and each employee paying the assessment, in turn, to credit the
assessment against their Kentucky individual income tax and, subject to the approval of the local levying authority or
authorities, local occupational license fee or fees otherwise due;

WHEREAS, Stark Truss Company, Inc., an Ohio corporation (the “Company”), P. O. Box 80469, Canton Ohio
44708, has proposed to acquire and install within the City a project consisting of a building, equipment and new employment
as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (collectively, the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Company has represented to the City that the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project, if constructed, will result in a substantial number of new job opportunities in the community, and the Company
agrees to comply with the provisions of City of Franklin Ordinance No. 221.10-06-2014;

WHEREAS, the Company has filed an application with the Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
(the “Authority”) for approval of the Project for the Program as authorized in KRS 154.32-030; )

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the public interest that the Board of City Commissioners make a formal,
binding commitment of financial resources in order to encourage and support economic development endeavors generally and the
Project specifically if and when approved by the Authority pursuant to KRS 154.32-030; and

WHEREAS, the Board of City Commissioners has approved the granting of an inducement to the Company for the
Project, pursuant to the Program, whereby it would forego the collection of the one percent (1%) occupational license fee on
wages that otherwise would be due the City, which fee shall be retained by the Company, with respect to Project employees
whose jobs meet the criteria and requirements established by the Program (“Qualifying Employees”) for a term of not longer
than ten (10) years from the date the Company properly activates the Program’s incentives pursuant to KRS 154.32-030 and
any agreement relating to the Project that the Company has with the Authority (the “Activation Date”).

P. 42



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that the recitals set forth in the preambles to this
Ordinance, which are incorporated in this Section by reference, are true and correct.

Section 2. Inducement. The City shall forego collection of, and Company shall be entitled to collect and
retain the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee due on wages paid to Qualifying Employees for a term of not longer
than ten (10) years from the Activation Date (the “Inducement Term™), as specified herein.

Section 3. Company to Deduct and Withhold Occupational License Fee on Wages. The Company, when
making payment of wages to Qualifying Employees earned with respect to the Inducement Term, shall deduct and withhold
upon the wages the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee. The Company shall remit to the City and report such
withheld amounts on the forms and reconciliations required by KRS 67.783(4) and (5) and Chapter 114 of the City Code of
Ordinances. The Company shall file, not less than quarterly in accordance with the City of Franklin’s Code of Ordinances,
with the City of Franklin, the City of Franklin Employers Quarterly Return provided by the City, specifically addressing the
issues related to the KBI Program. In addition, the company shall file a quarterly reconciliation of the City of Franklin’s
Occupational License Fees in a format as required by the City. If the company fails to comply with the provisions of this
Section, the company (or its representatives as the case may be) shall be subject to the penalty provisions set forth in Chapter
114 of the City’s occupational licensing and gross receipts ordinance(s), as amended from time to time, or forfeiture of future
participation in this program.

Section 4. Company Entitled to Reimbursement for Withheld and Remitted Amounts. The Company shall
remit said withheld amounts to the City pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance. The Company shall receive reimbursement
from the City, once per annum, after making the request, in writing, on the forms provided by the City, with said
reimbursement being due and payable not later than sixty (60) days after the Company files the written request for
reimbursement. Provided, however, that said reimbursement request shall not be filed later than two (2) years from the date
that the Company’s annual license fee returns are initially due, without regard to any extensions received or allowed.

Section 5. Qualifying Employees Entitled to Credit for Withheld Amounts. Each Qualifying Employee shall
be entitled to a credit against his or her occupational license fee liability to the City under KRS 67.785(3) and Chapter 114
of the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances equal to the amounts withheld from his or her wages pursuant to Section 3 of this
Ordinance.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and publication as
required by law.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent
provision, and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

November 25, 2019 FIRST READING

December 9, 2019 SECOND READING

P. 43



At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on December s
2019, and on motion made by Commissioner and seconded by Commissioner
, the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL

HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

CERTIFICATION

1, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, and as such City Clerk I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance
(including Exhibit A) duly adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of said City at a duly convened meeting held on
December , 2019, on the same occasion signed by the Mayor, duly filed, recorded and indexed in my office and now
in force and effect, and that all action taken in connection with such Ordinance was in compliance with the requirements of
KRS 61.810 through 61.825, all as appears from the official records of said Board of City Commissioners in my possession
and under my control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said City this day of
December, 2019.

(SEAL)

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 44



EXHIBIT A
Project Description for Stark Truss Company, Inc.

See letter and KBI Report attached hereto and incorporated herein collectively by reference.

P. 45



City of Franklin, Kentucky
117 W Cedar Street - P. O. Box 2805
Franklin, KY 42135-2805
Phone: 270-586-4497
Fax: 270-586-9419

January 9, 2017

Mr. John Bevington, Deputy Conimnissioner
Kentucky Economic Development Cabinet
300 West Broadway

Frankfort, KY 40601

Dear Mr. Bevington;

This letter is in support of the KBI application being submitted by Stark Truss Company
for a project in Franklin, Kentucky. Stark Truss Company which is headquartered in Canton,
Ohio is relocating their current Kentucky facility in Auburn, Kentucky to the former Wal-Marl
building on North Main Strect in Franklin, Kentucky. Stark Truss Company manufactures roof
trusses and wall panels for houses, commercial buildings, apartment complexes and hotels.

Stark Truss Company has been in business since 1963 and currently has ten (10) plants in
the United States with annual sales around $5 million. Their new Franklin location will help
them increase their annual sales and add additional employees.

The City of Franklin commits to pledge its onc percent (1%) occupational tax for the ten
(10) year period of the KBI program. We are pleaged that Stark Truss Company will be utilizing
one of Franklin’s abandoned buildings and make il a viable facility once again.

Sincerely,

e
o7
e &d/‘w—-x év".’f
~Mayor Ronnie Clark

4 City of Franklin, Kentucky

e e

‘ EXHIBIT A

P. 46



.....

Q) ) ~

L -

KENTUCKY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

KBI REPORT - PRELIMINARY APPROVAL 02 {
Date: January 26, 2017
Approved Company: Stark Truss Company, Inc.
City: Frankiin County: Simpson
Activity: Manufacturing Prelim Resolution #: KBI-IL-17-21457
Bus. Dev, Contact: C. Peek OFS Staff: M. Eider -

Project Description:  Stark Truss Company, Inc. has been in aperation for over 50 years
manufacturing building components. Stark has 10 manufacturing facilities
located in 7 states. The company is considering expanding its
manufaciuring capabilities at a proposed Franklin location,

Facility Details: Expanding existing operations
Anticipated Project Investment - Leased Eligible Costs Total Investment
Rent $450,000 $900,000
Building/improvements $240,000 $240,000
Equipment $220,000 $435,000
Other Start-up Costs $80,000 $80,000
TOTAL $990,000 $1,655,000
NEGOTIATED TARGETS AND INCENTIVE AMOUNTS:
Average Hourly Wage
Target (Including Annual Approved Cost
Year Job Target Employee Benefits) Limitation
As of Activation Date 11 $18.00

1 14 $18.00 $25,000

2 18 $18.00 $25,000

3 22 $18.00 $25,000

4 22 $18.00 $25,000

5 22 $18.00 $25,000

6 22 $18.00 $25,000

7 22 $18.00 $25,000

8 22 $18.00 $25,000

9 22 $18.00 $25,000

10 22 $18.00 $25,000
TOTAL NEGOTIATED TAX INCENTIVE AMOUNT: | $250,000 ]

et

P. 47



N
Id !

{ﬂ_h ' i\.,__,/'
County Type: Statutory Minimum Wage Requirements:
Other Base hourly wage: $10.88
Total hourly compensation: $12.51

Ownership (20% or more):

Active State Participation at the project site: None

Requested Wage Assessment / Local Participation:
State: 3.0%
Local: 1.0% City of Franklin

Unemployment Rate:
County: 3.5% Kentucky: 4.0%

Existing Presence in Kentucky:
Logan County

Special Conditions: .
The company will be required to maintain a base employment equal to the number of full-time,

Kentucky resident employees as of the date of preliminary approval. The company reported 2o full-

time, Kentucky resident employees-as of the application date, 0’)[ M ‘D Y.

UAM@ ,Ougp&ﬂ(ﬁ
Q/?"(t? g

P. 48



Sponsors: _Commissioner Bennett
Commissioner Powell

Second Reading: _December 9, 2019

Publication Date: _December 12, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 026

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
AMENDING SECTIONS 8.2.3, 8.15.3 AND 8.16.3 AND ADDING SECTION 9.8
TO THE ZONING REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2018, Ordinance 2018-001 of the City of Franklin, Kentucky,
relating to planning and zoning regulations was adopted by the Board of City Commissioners;
and

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2019, the Franklin-Simpson County Planning & Zoning
Commission held a public hearing regarding the addition of solar farms into the zoning
regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission amended Sections
8.2.3, 8.15.3, and 8.16.3 of the Zoning Regulations and added Section 9.8 named Regulations for
Solar Farms 10 Acres or More; and

WHEREAS, the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission approved changes to
the zoning regulations listed above; and

WHEREAS, it is the opinion and judgment of the Board of Commissioners of the City of
Franklin that it is necessary to amend Ordinance 2018-001 to reflect the changes as set forth
herein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City of Franklin, Kentucky, acting by
and through its Board of Commissioners as follows:

Section 8.2.3 of the Franklin-Simpson Planning and Zoning regulations shall be amended
as follows:

8.2.3 Conditional Uses
Subject to the approval of the Board of Adjustment, the following uses may be approved within an
agricultural district:

One duplex per lot; Airports and landing strips; Solar Farms as described and as set forth in
section 9.8; Cemeteries; Hospitals; Public or private schools or colleges; Home occupations when
in compliance with section 9.3; Oil or gas wells; Country club or golf course; Public parks,
playgrounds and community centers; Private marine, boat dock, boat ramp; Driving range or
private outdoor recreational activity; Manufactured home parks complying with section 8.8.13.

Section 8.15.3 shall be amended as follows:

8.15.3 Conditional Uses
The following uses are conditional uses in an I-1 district and require written approval of the Board
of Adjustment:

a. Manufactured Ice Plants;
b.  Machine shops;

P. 49



¢.  Jobbing and repair;
. Welding;

e Fabrication and processing plants of Articles to be sold at retail on the premises;
photocopying and duplication;

f. Salvage Yards (subject to provisions of Article 9.2); ‘

g.  General contractors and special trade contractors and partitions, shelving,
lockers, and office and store fixtures including cabinet shops;

h.  Child care facility which developed in conjunction with a planned industrial
park or is exclusively for the benefit of employees of the manufacturing plant.
Two or more adjoining manufacturing plants may jointly operate a child care
facility; and,

i. Solar Farms 10 acres or more as described and as set forth in section 9.8.

Section 8.16.3 shall be amended as follows:

8.16.3 Conditional Uses

The following uses are conditional uses in an I-2 district and require written approval of the Board
of Adjustment.

A. Manufacturing:

mEoFE e A T

y e e

NeEeprgseEo

Custom slaughtering;

Meat products;

Grain mill products;

Fats and oil processing and rendering mills;

Malt, wine or distilled and blended liquors;

Miscellaneous food preparations and kindred products;

Tobacco products;

Textile mill products;

Lumber and wood products, except furniture;

Furniture and fixtures;

Pulp, paper, and paperboard mills;

Paperboard containers and boxes, converted paper and paperboard products, except
containers and boxes;

. Chemicals and allies products;

Petroleum refining;

Rubber and miscellaneous plastics products;

Leather and leather products;

Stone, clay, glass, and concrete products;

Primary metal industries;

Fabricated metal products, except machinery and stone, clay, glass transportation
equipment;

Industrial and commercial machinery and computer equipment;

Electronic and other electrical equipment;

Transportation equipment;

. Measuring, analyzing and controlling instruments;

Photographic, medical, and optical goods;

Watches and clocks;

Miscellaneous manufacturing industries including any other manufacturing not otherwise
categorized by these regulations;

aa. Monuments finished to custom order;
bb. Terra cotta wholesale; and,
cc. Solar farms 10 acres or more as described in section 9.8.

There shall be added a new Section 9.8 which shall read as follows:

Page 2 of 4
P. 50



9.8 Regulations for Solar Farms to Apply Only to a Tract of Land of 10 Acres or More

Zone district allowed: AG, I-1, & I-2

Use permit type: Conditional Use Permitted

Purpose: To allow large scale ground mounted solar power generation projects on tracts of land of 10 acres
or more to be permitted under CUP Application in an AG, I-1, & I-2 Zone District only.

Setbacks- 50 fi. from any public road right- of- way; 250 ft. from any abutting residential zoned properties,
rural village districts, Churches, Cemetery, School or Nursing home; and, 100 ft. from any abutting_internal -
or external AG zoned properties.

Height requirements: No structure may exceed the maximum height of 15 ft. However, under special
circumstances in the developmental plan phase, the Planning and Zoning Commission may approve a
wavier for up to a maximum 25 ft. :

Required parking: 1 Space for every 2 emplovees on the shift of greatest employment plus 1 space for
every vehicle used in conduct of business.

Development plan required: Yes

Development plan requirements: Must show and/or contain diagrams of and contain the following:

1. The location and dimensions of all proposed areas for placement of solar panels, screening and fencing,
and related structures.

2. Any preexisting structures on the proposed property and any principle structures on other properties that
will affect placement of solar panels.

3. Parking and access areas.

4. Location of any proposed solar access easements.

5. Locations for wiring interconnections to system components.

6. Site access must be secured by a fence of at least 6 ft. in height. A vegetative landscape buffer may be
provided between the fence and the property line under the Planning and Zoning Commission’s
Recommendation for location and type so as long as it does not impair the system efficiency.

7. Site must adhere to the applicable sections of the International Building Code and National Electric
Code.

8. Any glare generated by the system must be mitigated or directed away from adjoining property and/or
adjacent roadway when it creates a nuisance or safety hazard on neighboring property or for passing
motorists.

9. Decommissioning plan that describes the anticipated life of the solar farm, the estimated costs in current
dollars, the method for ensuring that the funds will be available for decommissioning the solar farm and
restoration of the land to its pre-solar farm condition. In addition, the decommissioning plan shall contain

details of the manner in which the farm will be decommissioned and the site restored. Following a six-
month period in which no electricity is generated, the permit holder will have six months to complete

decommissioning of the solar farm. Decommissioning shall include, but not be limited to removing solar
panels, buildings, cabling, electrical components, and any other associated materials and restoring the land
to the pre-solar farm condition.

10. Property must be maintained to standards required by the International Property Maintenance Codes
and all applicable local ordinances.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall
be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions hereof. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

November 25,2019 FIRST READING
December 9, 2019 SECOND READING
Page 3 of 4

P. 51



At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on
December 9, 2019, on motion made by Commissioner
and seconded by Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance
was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor
ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

Page 4 of 4
P.52



Sponsors: _Commissioner Stewart
Commissioner Powell

Second Reading:  December 9, 2019

Publication Date: ~_December 12, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 027

AN ORDINANCE REZONING A 95 FEET BY 500 FEET LOT
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF EAST CEDAR STREET
FROM R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY) TO B-2 (GENERAL BUSINESS)

WHEREAS, the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority, 109 South Main Street,
Franklin, Kentucky 42134, filed a petition to rezone a 95 feet by 500 feet lot located on the
south side of East Cedar Street from R-1 (Single Family) to B-2 (General Business); and

WHEREAS, the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority desires to rezone the
aforementioned property from R-1 (Single Family) to B-2 (General Business) to make the
property more productive for the community, and this change is appropriate and consistent
with the use of this property and surrounding properties; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 5, 2019, after due public notice,
in the manner provided by law; and

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission recommended the granting of said
zone change as it is in agreement with the community’s comprehensive plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City
of Franklin, Kentucky as follows:

A 95 feet by 500 feet lot located on the south side of East Cedar Street as described
below is granted a zone change from R-1 (Single Family) to B-2 (General Business):

Certain real property located on the south side of East Cedar Street (Kentucky
Highway 100), east of the public square, in Franklin, Simpson County,
Kentucky to-wit:

Beginning at an iron pin in the north right-of-way of East Cedar Street and
running thence with the south right-of-way S 79° 38" 31" E approximately 500
feet to a point in the south right-of-way; thence S 10° 21" 29" W approximately
95 feet to a point, the south east corner of the subject tract; thence N 79° 38°
31" W approximately 500 feet to a point in the west property line of the subject
property; thence with the west property line N 3° 40" 52" E approximately 95
feet to the point of beginning.

Being a part of the same property conveyed to Franklin Simpson Industrial
Authority by Franklin Partners, a Tennessee general partnership by deed dated
October 11, 2012, by record in Deed Book 300, Page 237, Simpson County
Clerk’s office. :

P. 53



If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holdings
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed.

November 25,2019 FIRST READING

December 9, 2019 SECOND READING

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on December 9,
2019, on motion made by Commissioner and seconded
by Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance was adopted,
after full discussion, by the following vote:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
JAMIE POWELL
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART
HERBERT WILLIAMS

APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor
ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 54



FRANKLIN-SIMPSON JOINT PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

In Re the Petition for Zone Change from R-1 (Single Family) to B-2 (General Business)

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW,
AND RECOMMENDATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

A public hearing was held before this Commission on November 5, 2019, at the hour of
6:30 p.n1. on the petition of the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority (“Authority”) that a
certain lot approximately 95 feet by 500 feet in size located on the south side of East Cedar
Street in Franklin, Simpson County, Kentucky, (“Property”) be re-zoned from R-1 to B-2. The
Vice Chairman of the Commission, Kent .Wilson, presided. A quorum of the Commission was
present. The petitioner was represented by G. William Leach, Jr. The hearing was
stenographically recorded by the firm of James Dale, licensed court reporter.

The Commission then proceeded to hear an opening statement from attorney Leach and -
testimony in favor of the zone change [rom Dennis Griffin, Executive Director of the Franklin-
Simpson Industrial Authority. There was no opposition to the réquest.

Having heard testimony, having reviewed the petition for zone change, the exhibits
presented, and having reviewed the Comprehensive Plan, for Simpson County, Kentucky, Gary
Sliger moved, and George Weissinger seconded, and the Commission unanimously voted to
recommend the zone change. In connection with the zone change, the Commission ﬁnds,

concludes, and recommends the following:

P. 55



FINDINGS OF FACT

I
The Property is a small rectangular sliver of land on the south side of East Cedar Street
and is a part of a larger commercial tract which is zoned B-2, on which is located an existing
commercial building currently leased to Houchens Industries for operation of a Price Less [GA
food store, and for the Kristin 'Hick;ma_n’ dance studio.
I1
A review of the current zoning map discloses that while the property adjacent and
immediately to the west is used for multi-family housing, it is zoned B-2. The property on the
north side of East Cedar Street is likewise zoned B-2; and the property adjacent to the south is
zoned B-2. The Property is encircled by property already zoned B-2.
1
‘The Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority property of which the subject tract is a part
lies at the southwest intersection of East Cedar Street and Robey Stieet, an intersection, and
general area, which is generally commercial in character.
v
While the Property does not have a building on it, it currently serves as a buffer to the
existing building, and the Authority anticipates possibly constructing another commercial

building on the Property as an efficient way to use it and the existing large paved parking area.

P. 56



\Y
The 1992 Comprehensive Plan at pp. 118 notes the urban pattern of commercial growth
out Highway 100 from the Public Square, creating a “potential for south and easterly commercial
growth along 31-W and Highway 100...” It cites figure 6.6 which shows the areas of potential
commercial development, and the subject Property lies within same. Because of such, the map
amendment is in agreemént with the adopted Comprehensive Plan under KRS 100.213(1).
VI
The Franklin-Simpson Comprehensive Plan Update of 2010 contains a checklist, at page
10-10, for general commercial considerations and includes that all commercial developments
should haveé access to arterial or collector streets, share service access points and parking lots, in-
fill existing commercial areas, and be locafed in areas where public utilities and facilities are
adequate to support the use. The Property meets all of those criteria, as it lies adjacent to an
intersection of arterial roads, lies adjacent to a residential development which is in a B-2 zone,
public utilities and facilities are available, and the re-zoning marks an important in-fill of
© existing commercial areas.
VI
The purpose of the general business zoning district is to serve adjoining neighbéring
residential areas, so the re-zoning of the Property is consistent with the presence of the
rémaining residential areas. The presence of business and comuneércial operations on East Cedar

Street, a major artery through Franklin, is expected and appropriate.

L2

P. 87



Vil
The Property is served by all utilities and has street access to East Cedar Street, as well as

to Robey Street to the east through the existing parking lot and interior passageways.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

A re-zoning of the Property is in agreement with the adopted Comprehensive Plan and
Update, The zone change request meets the criteria of KRS 100.213(1) and Section 10.7 of the
Franklin-Simpson Zoning Regulations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Commission having adopted the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law,
does now hereby recommend to the Franklin City Cominission that the zone change be

approved and that the Property described in the Appendix be re-zoned from R-1 to B-2

I W lsan

KENTJWILSON, Vice Chairman

P. 58



PROPERTY DESCRIPTION APPENDIX

EXHIBIT A

Certain real property located on the south side of East Cedar Street (Kentucky
Highway 100), east of the public square, in Franklin, Simpson County, Kentucky to-

wit;

Beginning at an iron pin in the north right-of-way of East Cedar Street and running
thence with the south right-of-way S 79° 38' 31" E approximately 500 feet to a point
in the south right-of-way; thence S 10°21'29" W approximately 95 feet to a point,
the south east corner of the subject tract; thence N 79° 38' 31" W approximately 500
feet to a poirt in the west property line of the subject property; thence with the west
property line N 3° 40' 52" E approximately 93 feet to the point of beginning.

Being a patt of the same property conveyed to Franklin Simpson Industrial Authority

by Franklin Partners, a Tennessee general partnership by deed dated Octobet 11,
2012, by record in Deed Book 300, Page 237, Simpson County Clerk’s office.

P. 59



——r
z nvn bbg- Wm~ __nc

P. 60

3y vou..auom Tt

4 1UD54

. S i eSO
._ e w.wwyﬂm.._ Bs

199'2¢ _ o
\,,00,00526% /

© DRIVE

- 352.52

DE
{25)

o

MORNINGS

E..Am.mwrt.m..; mnoﬁw

———




Sponsors: _Commissioner Stewart
Compmissioner Poweil

Second Reading: _December 9, 2019

Publication Date: _December 12, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 028

AN ORDINANCE REZONING APPROXIMATELY 40.1657 ACRES
AT THE END OF CLAIBORNE CIRCLE
LOCATED AT THE END OF LEXINGTON PLACE SUBDIVISION
FROM R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY) TO R-1S
(SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT)

WHEREAS, Lexington Place, LLC, 177 Southwind Drive, Bowling Green, Kentucky
42104, filed a petition to rezone 40.1657 acres at the end of Claiborne Circle located at the
end of Lexington Place Subdivision from R-1 (Single Family) to R-1S (Single Family
Residential District); and

WHEREAS, Lexington Place, LLC desires to rezone the aforementioned property
from R-1 (Single Family) to R-1S (Single Family Residential District) to make the property
more productive for the community, and this change is appropriate and consistent with the use
of this property and surrounding properties; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 5, 2019, after due public notice,
in the manner provided by law; and

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission recommended the granting of said
zone change as it is in agreement with the community’s comprehensive plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City
of Franklin, Kentucky as follows:

The 40.1657 acres at the end of Claiborne Circle located at the end of Lexington Place
Subdivision as described below is granted a zone change from R-1 (Single Family) to R-1S
(Single Family Residential District):

Being a 40.1657-acre tract of land at the end of Claiborne Circle located at the
end of Lexington Place Subdivision in Simpson County KY. The property is
owned by Developing Partners, being a portion of Deed Book 269, Page 480 as
recorded in the office of the Clerk of Simpson County, KY.

The property is more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a 5/8-inch iron pin with a yellow plastic cap stamped “L
SLAVEY KY 39227, said pint is in the South East corner of Lot 39 of the
Lexington Place Subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 58, in the office
of the Clerk in Simpson County, KY, said point lies in the line of the
Blackberry Ridge, LLC property (Deed Book 287, Page 457), thence leaving
the Lexington Place Subdivision and with Blackberry Ridge, LLC S 08°46'40"
W a distance of 593.96' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin with a yellow plastic cap

P. 61



stamped “L SLAVEY KY 3922 (all set iron pins called out in this description
meet the aforementioned description, thence S 03°00'43" E a distance of 48.70'
to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, said point is in the line of the Scearce Property (Deed
book 312, Page 406), thence with the Scearce property S 86°59'17" W a
distance of 192.40' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 04°42'36" E a distance
of 646.90' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 86°27'22" W a distance of
1135.50' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin near a t-post, said point is corner common to
the Andrews Property, thence with Andrews N 05°0826" W a distance of
945.13" to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence N 85°3920" W a distance of 364.54'
to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence N 05°27'34" E a distance of 309.14' to a found
5/8-inch iron pin with a yellow plastic cap stamped “L SLAVEY KY 3922,
said point is corner common to the aforementioned Lexington Place
Subdivision, thence with the Lexington Place Subdivision the next 13 calls as
follows thence S 85°02'34" E a distance of 133.25' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin,
thence S 69°44'15" E a distance of 51.84' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S
81°54'34" E a distance of 257.30' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S
80°24'57" E a distance of 528.62' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence N
03°57'06" E a distance of 351.03' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence N
32°31'11" E a distance of 84.97' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence
81°3729" E a distance of 400.00' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence
68°42'44" E a distance of 78.63' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence
81°43'28" E a distance of 125.00' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence
08°16'32" W a distance of 77.09' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence
81°4328" E a distance of 50.00' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin thence N
08°16'32" E a distance of 21.46' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S
81°43'28" E a distance of 119.04' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, which is the
point of beginning, having an area of 40.1657 acres, 1749618 square fect.

nwnuninwn

This survey was performed under the direct supervision of Lucas L. Slavey
LPLS 3922 of Van Meter & Slavey, LLC in November 2019.

Being a part of the same property conveyed to Lexington Place, LLC by
Developing Partners II, LLC by deed dated May 18, 2017, of record in Deed
Book 327, Page 739, Simpson County Clerk’s Office.

Said property is also known as Phases 2 and 3 of the Lexington Place

Subdivision currently of record in Plat Book 5, Page 58, Office of the Simpson
County Clerk.

P. 62



If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holdings
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed.

November 25, 2019 FIRST READING

December 9, 2019 SECOND READING

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on
December 9, 2019, on motion made by Commissioner
and seconded by Commissioner , the foregoing
ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
JAMIE POWELL
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART
HERBERT WiLLIAMS

APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 63



FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND APPROVAL AND
RECOMMENDATION OF ZONE CHANGE BY FRANKLIN-SIMPSON COUNTY
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

This matter came before the Franklin-Simpson County Planning & Zoning Commission
on November 5, 2019, on the petition of James Cook, Lexington Place, LLC, requesting a zone
change from R-1 (Single Family Residential District) to R-1S (Single Family Residential

District) for approximately 40.1657 acres described as follows:

Being a 40.1657-acre tract of land at the end of Claiborne Circle located at the
end of Lexington Place Subdivision in Simpson County KY. The property is
owned by Developing Partners. being a portion of Deed Book 269, Page 480 as
recorded in the office of the Clerk of Simpson County, KY.

The property is more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at a 5/8-inch iron pin with a yellow plastic cap stamped “L SLAVEY
KY 3922”, said pint is in the South East corner of Lot 39 of the Lexington Place
- Subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 58, in the office of the Clerk in
Simpson County, KY, said point lies in the line of the Blackberry Ridge, LLC
property (Deed Book 287, Page 457), thence leaving the Lexington Place
Subdivision and with Blackberry Ridge, LLC S 08°46'40" W a distance of 593.9¢'
{0 a set 5/8-inch iron pin with a yellow plastic cap stamped “L SLAVLEY KY
3922” (all set iron pins called out in this description meet the aforementioned
description, thence S 03°00'43" E a distance of 48.70" to a set 5/8-inch iron pin,
said point is in the line of the Scearce Property (Deed book 312, Pags 406),
thence with the Scearce property S 86°59'17" W a distance of 192.40' to a set 5/8-
inch iron pin, thence S 04°42'36" E a distance of 646.90' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin,
thence S 86°2722" W a distance of 1135.30" to a set 5/8-inch iron pin near a t-
post, said point is corner common o the Andrews Property, thence with Andrews
N 05°0826" W a distance of 945.13' to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence N
85°39'20" W a distance of 364.54" to a set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence N 05°2734" E
a distance of 309.14' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin with a yellow plastic cap
stamped “L SLAVEY KY 39227, said point is corner common to the
aforementioned Lexington Place Subdivision, thence with the Lexington Place
Subdivision the next 13 calls as follows thence S 85°0234" E a distance of
133.25' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 69°44'15" E a distance of 51.84'to a
set 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 81°54'34" E a distancc of 257.30' to a found 5/8-
inch iron pin, thence S 80°24'57" E a distance of 528.62' to a found 5/8-inch iron
pin, thence N 03°57'06" E a distance of 351.03' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin,
thence N 32°31'11" E a distance of 84.97' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence §
81°3729" E a distance of 400.00' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 68°42'44"
E a distance of 78.63' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 81°43'28" E a

P. 64



distance of 125.00' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 08°16'32" W a distance
of 77.09' to a found 5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 81°43'28" E a distance of 50.00" to
a found 5/8-inch iron pin thence N 08°16'32" E a distance of 21.46' to a found
5/8-inch iron pin, thence S 81°4328" E a distance of 119.04' to a found 5/8-inch
iron pin, which is the point of beginning. having an area of 40.1657 acres,

1749618 square feet.

This survey was performed under the direct supervision of Lucas L. Slavey LPLS
2922 of Van Meter & Slavey, LLC in November 2019.

Being a part of the same property conveyed to Lexington Place, LIL.C by

Developing Partners II, LLC by deed dated May 18, 2017, of record in Deed

Book 327, Page 739, Simpson County Clerk’s Office.

It was reported to the Commission that Lexington Place, LLC desired for said property’s
zoning be amended from Single Family Residential District (R-1) to Single Fémiiy Residential
District(R-1S). James Cook on behalf of Lexington Place, LLC appeared with Hon. Timothy J.
Crocker. Homebuilders from the community were also in attendance. The Commission heard
statements from counsel and testimony from James Cook as representative of Lexington Place,
LLC and homebuilders. After considering the testimony and statements of counsel, the
following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were adopted by the Franklin-Simpson
County Planning & Zoning Commission:

1 The map amendment sought is in agreement with the community’s

1.

Comprehensive Plan.

2 The original zoning classification, R-1, given to the property was inappropriate or

improper because the zoning classification of R-18 did not exist at the time of the original zone

classification.

3. There have been major changes of an economic, physical, or social nature within

the area which were not anticipated in the community’s Comprehensive Plan and which have

substantially altered the basic character of such area.

P. 65



e aoplican: bas cemplisd wils all provedirsl prersgnisites ingiading the proper Lling
al the reques: for & wone changs, and pasinesnn & “all necossary oxpesisls,

Seserd upei the ferspolag gpecthic Tindogs nf Tast and Chmclusions of Low, the
e dsian peaamamends 1 tha Dy of Franilis, thet e zane chaugs for the property deseribed
hersin from B-o to ReiE o be gricags,

Appoved and tecamnenendsd for goging shange, this e ﬁ#‘_ timy al f‘[ﬁ;gﬂ: by 7
R

_.'i. ™
- 2t IM{LJ Ay
VICE CIAIRMAN

P. BE



Sponsors: Commissioner Powell
Second Reading: November 25, 2019
Publication Date: _December 12, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-029

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY, AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN
INDUCEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF A
PROJECT PURSUANT TO THE KENTUCKY BUSINESS INVESTMENT
PROGRAM (KRS 154.32-010 TO 154.32-100) WHEREBY THE CITY AGREES
TO FOREGO THE COLLECTION OF THE ONE PERCENT (1%) CITY
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE FEE ON WAGES FROM GEHRET GAGE, LLC
THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE DUE WITH RESPECT TO PROJECT
EMPLOYEES, WHICH AMOUNTS SHALL BE COLLECTED AND
REMITTED TO THE CITY TO BE REFUNDED UPON EMPLOYER’S
REQUEST OVER A TERM OF NOT LONGER THAN TEN (10) YEARS FROM
THE ACTIVATION DATE ESTABLISHED BY SAID PROGRAM; AND
TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTION

WHEREAS, it is the public policy of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (“City
Commission” and “City”) to encourage, promote, and support economic development, new job formation, and the
development and growth of industry and commerce, and to preserve existing jobs in Kentucky for the public purposes of
providing employment opportunities for its citizens and residents, alleviating conditions of unemployment, stabilizing and
promoting the economy of Kentucky, and creating new tax bases and sources of revenue for the Commonwealth;

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Business Investment Program, Sections 154.32-010 through 154.32-100 of the
Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”), the (“Program”), authorizes and empowers the Commonwealth and certain local
jurisdictions to promote economic development in Kentucky by inducing the creation of economic development projects
by eligible companies, as more particularly described therein;

WHEREAS, KRS 154.32-090 authorizes an eligible company to deduct certain wage assessments from payments
of wages to economic development project employees and each employee paying the assessment, in turn, to credit the
assessment against their Kentucky individual income tax and, subject to the approval of the local levying authority or
authorities, local occupational license fee or fees otherwise due;

WHEREAS, Gehret Gage, LLC, a Kentucky limited liability company (the “Company™), P. O. Box 263, Franklin,
Kentucky 42135, has proposed to acquire and install within the City a project consisting of a building, equipment and new
employment as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (collectively, the “Project™);

WHEREAS, the Company has represented to the City that the acquisition, construction and installation of the
Project, if constructed, will result in a substantial number of new job opportunities in the community, and the Company
agrees to comply with the provisions of City of Franklin Ordinance No. 221.10-06-2014;

WHEREAS, the Company has filed an application with the Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
(the “Authority”) for approval of the Project for the Program as authorized in KRS 154.32-030;

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the public interest that the Board of City Commissioners make a formal,
binding commitment of financial resources in order to encourage and support economic development endeavors generally and
the Project specifically if and when approved by the Authority pursuant to KRS 154.32-030; and

WHEREAS, the Board of City Commissioners has approved the granting of an inducement to the Company for
the Project, pursuant to the Program, whereby it would forego the collection of the one percent (1%) occupational license
fee on wages that otherwise would be due the City, which fee shall be retained by the Company, with respect to Project
employees whose jobs meet the criteria and requirements established by the Program (“Qualifying Employees™) for a term
of not longer than ten (10) years from the date the Company properly activates the Program’s incentives pursuant to KRS
154.32-030 and any agreement relating to the Project that the Company has with the Authority (the “Activation Date™).

P. 67



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. It is hereby found, determined and declared that the recitals set forth in the preambles to this
Ordinance, which are incorporated in this Section by reference, are true and correct.

Section 2. Inducement. The City shall forego collection of, and Company shall be entitled to collect and
retain the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee due on wages paid to Qualifying Employees for a term of not
longer than ten (10) years from the Activation Date (the “Inducement Term”), as specified herein.

Section 3. Company to Deduct and Withhold Occupational License Fee on Wages. The Company, when
making payment of wages to Qualifying Employees earned with respect to the Inducement Term, shall deduct and
withhold upon the wages the one percent (1%) City occupational license fee. The Company shall remit to the City and
report such withheld amounts on the forms and reconciliations required by KRS 67.783(4) and (5) and Chapter 114 of the
City Code of Ordinances. The Company shall file, not less than quarterly in accordance with the City of Franklin’s Code
of Ordinances, with the City of Franklin, the City of Franklin Employers Quarterly Return provided by the City,
specifically addressing the issues related to the KBI Program. In addition, the company shall file a quarterly reconciliation
of the City of Franklin’s Occupational License Fees in a format as required by the City. If the company fails to comply
with the provisions of this Section, the company (or its representatives as the case may be) shall be subject to the penalty
provisions set forth in Chapter 114 of the City’s occupational licensing and gross receipts ordinance(s), as amended from
time to time, or forfeiture of future participation in this program. '

Section 4. Company Entitled to Reimbursement for Withheld and Remitted Amounts. The Company shall
remit said withheld amounts to the City pursuant to Section 3 of this Ordinance. The Company shall receive
reimbursement from the City, once per annum, after making the request, in writing, on the forms provided by the City, with
said reimbursement being due and payable not later than sixty (60) days after the Company files the written request for
reimbursement. Provided, however, that said reimbursement request shall not be filed later than two (2) years from the
date that the Company’s annual license fee returns are initially due, without regard to any extensions received or allowed.

Section 5. Qualifying Employees Entitled to Credit for Withheld Amounts. Each Qualifying Employee
shall be entitled to a credit against his or her occupational license fee liability to the City under KRS 67.785(3) and Chapter
114 of the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances equal to the amounts withheld from his or her wages pursuant to Section 3
of this Ordinance. :

Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and publication as
required by law.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent
provision, and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

November 25,2019 FIRST READING

December 9, 2019 SECOND READING

P. 68



At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on December ,
2019, and on motion made by Commissioner and seconded by Commissioner
, the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL

HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Franklin,
Kentucky, and as such City Clerk I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of an Ordinance
(including Exhibit A) duly adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of said City at a duly convened meeting held on
December , 2019, on the same occasion signed by the Mayor, duly filed, recorded and indexed in my office and now
in force and effect, and that all action taken in connection with such Ordinance was in compliance with the requirements of
KRS 61.810 through 61.825, all as appears from the official records of said Board of City Commissioners in my possession
and under my control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said City this day of
December, 2019.

(SEAL)

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 69



Exhibit A

Project Description for Gehret Gage, LLC

See letter and KBI Report attached hereto and incorporated herein collectively by reference.

P. 70



criy Qf

ANKLIN

November 29; 2018
Sectetary Terry Gill
Kentucky Economic Development Cabinet
300 West Broadway

Frankfort, Ky 40601
Secretary Gill:

As Mayor of Franklin, Kentucky, I want to express my support for the KBI
Incentive application being submitted by Gehret Gage, LLC. The company will locate
in an industiial building in Franklin and will provide 20 new job opportunities for our
community.

John Gehret, owner of Gehtet Gage, is a current resident of Simpson County
and had been involved in manufacturing in our community for many years. He is
planning on leasing a 12,000 square foot facility and offering good paying jobs to
many residents of Franklin.

The City of Franklin will support this KBI application by including the one
petcent city occupational tax with the state’s incentive portion. I am in strong suppoxt
of Gehret Gage, a2 much needed industrty for our community.

Sincerely,

" Ronnie Clark, Mayor

117 West Cedar St. « P.O. Box 2805 ¢ Franklin, Kentucky 42135-2805
Phone (270) 586-4497  Fax |(_)27(2; %86—9419 * www.franklinky.org



Date:

Approved Company:

City:
Activity:

Bus. Dev, Contact:

Project Description:

Facility Details:

Anticipated Project Investment - Leased Eligible Costs Total Investment
Rent $240,000 $480,000
Building/improvements $75,000 $75,000
Equipment $200,000 $590,000
Other Start-up Costs $360,000 $360,000
TOTAL $875,000 $1,505,000

NEGOTIATED TARGETS AND INCENTIVE AMOUNTS:

7

() )

N .

KENTUCKY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

KBl REPORT - PRELIMINARY APPROVAL

December 13, 2018
Gehret Gage, LLC

Franklin County: Simpson
Manufacturing Prelim Resolution #: KBI-IL.-18-22339
L. Witt DFS Staff: M. Elder

Gehrel Gage, LLC is a start-up gage manufacturing facllity considering

locating in Franklin. The company hopes to have the newest innovation of

CNC machines and inspection equipment available using the state-of-the-
art grinding machines that will speed up the processes by 75%, running
multiple procedures at once.

Locating in a new facility

Average Hourly Wage
Target (Including Annual Approved Cost
Year Job Target Employee Benefits) Limitation
As of Activation Date 10 $22.70
1 13 $22.70 $16,000
2 16 $22.70 $16,000
3 16 $22.70 $16,000
4 16 $22.70 $16,000
5 16 $22.70 $16,000
6 16 $22.70 $16,000
7 16 $22.70 $16,000
8 16 $22.70 $16,000
9 16 $22.70 $16,000
10 16 $22.70 $16,000
TOTAL NEGOTIATED TAX INCENTIVE AMOUNT: | $160,000 i

P. 72



(. C

County Type: Statutory Minimum Wage Requlrements:
Other Base hourly wage: $10.88
Total hourly compensation: $12.51

Ownership (20% or more);
John O, Gehret Il  Franklin, KY

Active State Participation at the project site: None
Requested Wage Assessment / Local Participation:
State: 3.0%
Local: 1.0% City of Franklin

Unemployment Rate:
County: 3.7% Kentucky: 4.3%

Existing Presence in Kentucky: None

Special Conditions: None

P. 73



ORDINANCE 2019-030

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2019 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2020 BY
ESTIMATING REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, the City Commission for the City of Franklin, Kentucky is required by law to amend its budget ordinance to reflect actual revenues and
expenditures if different from those projected; and

WHEREAS, it has been reported to the City Commission that actual revenues collected and costs expended by the city during the 2019-2020
fiscal year are different from those projected in the current budget ordinance, and it is therefore necessary to amend the 2019-2020 budget ordinance fo
reflect these variances,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City of Franklin, Kentucky that the 2018-2019 budget is hereby amended to read as follows:

General Stormwater Sanitation Municipal Cemetery Perpetual
Fund Fund Utitity Fund Fund Aid Fund Fund Care
Estimated Revenues:
Operating Revenue - 247,500 5,292,000 722,000 - 77,000 7,400
Tax Revenue 1,163,989 - - - - - -
—1,067:396 .
Licenses & Fees 5,437,511 - - 244,000 - - -
Intergovernmental Revenue 419,062 - - - 457,849 - -
—449;082 —338367 —-— B —
Fines & Forfeits - 68,602 - 208,750 26,000 - - -
&§4660 -—208;750 — 26,000
Intragovernmental Revenues 592,998 100,000 - - - 186,000 -
——592,988 —100,000 —186,000
Miscellaneous Revenue 274,413 16,904 189,273 9,630 1,686 1,722 11,823
~——230.808 15,402 221723 7500 2106 607 —12,647
Non-Operating Revenue - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 7,956,574 364,404 5,690,023 1,001,630 459,535 264,722 19,223

— 7,842,253 —362,902 5,722,473 —999,500 340,467 263,607 —20,047
Appropriations:

General Government 1,491,035 - - - - - -
—H454183

Police 2,358,631 - - - - - -
—2;366;719

Fire 279,553 - - - - - -
279.553

Public Services 808,852 - - - - - -
—-805.888

Community Services 630,004 - - - - - -
—Bt124

Economic Development © 739,000 - - - - - -
. 739.000

Stormwater - 213,825 - - - - -

—-243;864
Municipal Utilities - - 3,507,065 - - - -
—3;540,156
Sanitation - - - 725,000 - - -
— 725,000

Municipal Aid/Severance - - - - 364,250 - -

- —245250 _

Municipal Cemetery - - - .- - 204,499 -

—204.524 ————

Debt Service 535,260 - 602,194 - - - -

— 544040 —— - 606,956
Capital Outlay 1,139,491 - 1,037,771 - - 5,000 -
I:"74‘EAI-: 664,()1 Z :,nnn

Page 1 of 2, Amended ORDINANCE 2019-030

P. 74



TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

EXCESS RESOURCES

RESERVE FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
TRANSFERS OUT

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Supplementary Notes:

Expenditure of Funds from Capital Sinking
Fund (Monies allocated and saved in prior
Fiscal Years):

Once time Allocation for Purchase of
Property

One time Allocation for Defeasance of
Bonds

Change in Fund Balance Net of One Time
Expenditures and/or Expenditures from
Capital Sinking Fund

SECTION 2: The regulatory license fee shali be eight percent (8%) of gross sales of all alcoholic beverages sold by
the drink. In the case of retail sales of package distilled spirits, wine and malt beverages, the regulatory license fee

7,981,826 213,825 5,147,030 725,000 364,250 209,499 -
—7:368;068 —213;804 —4;814120 —725,000 —245:250 —208;521

(25,251) 150,579 542,993 276,630 95,285 55,223 19,223

98,335 - 332,797 - - - =
— 105000 — . 337,764

438,000 - 243,498 209,500 95,000 52,400 3,000
—433—000, — I 243:498 299:509 QS,QQD 52’ 160 a’gg

(561,586) 150,579 (33,302) 67,130 285 2,823 16,223

487,597 - 342,908.18 - - - -

260,000 - - - - - -

255,000 - 265,000.00 - - - -

441,012 150,579 574,608 67,130 285 2,823 16,223

shall be five percent (5%) of gross sales. The annual rate for the regulatory license fee adopted by the City
Commission is estimated to ensure full reimbursement to the city for the cost of any additional policing, regulatory,
or administrative expense related to the sale of alcoholic beverages in the city.

SECTION 3: The detailed budget proposal and message, together with modifications, are hereby adopted and
incorporated by the reference herein, the same as if copied at length herein.

SECTION 4: This ordinance is effective upon its passage and publication.

SECTION 5: If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or a portion of this ordinance is

declared illegal, unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such declaration shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Franklin City Commission held on on motion made by
, the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full discussion,

seconded by Commissioner
by the following vote.

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

Commissioner Brownie Bennett
Commissioner Herbert Williams
Commissioner Jamie Powell
Commissioner Wendell Stewart
Mayor Larry Dixon

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KY

A DETAILED COPY OF THE BUDGET MAY BE SEEN AT CITY HALL,117 W CEDAR
STREET, FRANKLIN KENTUCKY BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 8:30 A.M. AND 4:30 P.M.

MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY.

Page 2 of 2, Amended ORDINANCE 2019-030

P. 75

and



